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PAULDING COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

166 Confederate Avenue * Dallas,Georgia 30132
Telephone 770-505-1352 * Fax 770-505-1353

December 18, 2010

Board of Commissioners and Citizens
Paulding County, Georgia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Paulding County, Georgia, for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, is submitted herewith as mandated by local ordinances and the
State of Georgia statutes. These ordinances and statutes require that Panlding County
issue annually a report on its financial position and activity, and that this report be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the County. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the
County. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
County’s financial activities have been included.

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure which is designed to ensure that the assets of the county are protected
from loss, theft, or misuse; and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

Georgia statutes require an annual audit by an independent firm of certified public
accountants, The Board of Commissioners selected the accounting firm of Mauldin &
Jenkins CPAs, LL.C. The auditor’s report on the basic financial statements and schedules
is included in the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD &A) immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it.
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Profile of Paulding County

Paulding County, incorporated in 1832, was the 87" county created in Georgia and was
named after John Paulding, a soldier in the Revolutionary War. Paulding County’s rich
historical resources include a number of well-preserved Civil War memorials, including
the New Hope Church that was the site of the 1864 battle between General Sherman and
Confederate General Johnston. The County is located approximately 29 miles northwest
of Atlanta and ranks as one of the top ten fastest growing counties in the nation. The
County has a land area of 314 square miles and a population of approximately 136,655.

Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the governing authority, consisting
of a five-member Board of Commissioners, including a full-time Chairman. The
Commission Chairman is elected at large, while the four other members are elected by
district. All members serve four-year, staggered terms. The commission is responsible,
among other things, for adopting ordinances and budgets, appointing committees, and
confirming department heads. The Chairman is the chief executive and is responsible for
carrying out policies and ordinances of the commission and for appointing the heads of
the County’s departments, The County Administrator is responsible for the daily
operations of County functions in accordance with policies of the Board of
Commissioners. The governing authority of the County is empowered to levy a property
tax on both real and personal property located within its boundaries.

This report includes all funds of the County, as well as its component units. Component
units are either 1) legally separate entities for which the County is financially
accountable; or 2) entities whose relationship with the County is of a nature and
significance that exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. Discretely presented component units are reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their financial position
from those of the primary government,

The County provides a full range of services which include law enforcement and fire
protection; the construction and maintenance of roads, streets, bridges, and infrastructure;
water and sewer; solid waste; and recreational and cultural activities. The Paulding
County Board of Education and WellStar Paulding Medical Center have not met the
established criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly, are excluded
from this repott.

Budgeting Controls. The County maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective
of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the County’s Board of Commissioners.
Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects fund and debt
service fund, are included in the annual appropriated budget. Annual budgets for the
enterprise funds are adopted for management and control purposes. Project-length
financial plans are adopted for certain capital projects. The level of budgetary control
(the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the




department level. The County also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one
method of maintaining budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end.
However, outstanding encumbrances generally are re-appropriated as part of the
following year’s budget.

Local Economy

The County’s unemployment rate of 10.8 percent represents an increase from last year
and is slightly higher than the rate of 10.3 percent for the State of Georgia. This increase
in unemployment rate is attributed to the housing market crisis being experienced nation
wide as well as the economic downturn also experienced nationwide. However,
Paulding County is not experiencing as significant an impact on the homeownership rate
as the state. Paulding County continues to hold a high home-ownership rate of 86.8
percent and 6.9 percent of the families living below the poverty level, compared to State
averages of 67.5 percent and 14.3 percent, respectively.

While the County’s rapid residential growth slowed substantially. Commercial
construction, however, has experienced a less intensive slow down compared to housing.
A positive outlook for future growth is the opening of the County’s general aviation
airport. The County’s fransition from a bedroom community into a more self-sustaining
community will present significant challenges for the County, as the demand for services
will change. To meet the needs of these changes the County is exploring new methods of
obtaining financial resources and providing higher quality and more efficient services at
less cost. The County is in its final year of a six-year special purpose local option sales
tax (SPLOST) used to fund the construction and improvement of roads, construction of
recreational facilities, and public safety capital improvements. Since 1988, the County’s
voters have supported six consecutive referendums for a special purpose local option
sales tax (SPLOST) for the County, as well as, four consecutive similar referendums for
the construction of schools.

Long-term financial planning
All amounts, unless otherwise indicated are expressed in thousands of dollars.

General Fund Balance. The fund balance of the general fund remained stable in 2010, as
a result of conservative spending policies and budget control measures. The
undesignated fund balance of $16,470 represents 113 working days of expenditures. This
level of undesignated fund balance should significantly reduce the likelihood of the
County entering the short-term debt market to pay current operating expenditures.

Proprietary Operations. The County’s proprictary operations are comprised of three,
separate and distinct activities: the Water and Sewer System, the Solid Waste Disposal
System and the Department of Family and Children’s Services (DFCS) facility. The
Water and Sewer System operates with no subsidy from the County’s General Fund.
Revenue from the Solid Waste Disposal System generates approximately 83 percent of its
cost to operate. The State of Georgia leases the space for DFCS from the County, the
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The County has acquired right-of-way for a major by-pass in the Hiram area. Funding
has been released at the state level to begin the project. The by-pass will relieve traffic
congestion in the County’s primary commetcial district. Construction will begin in
February 2011 and will be open to traffic in late 2012.

During 2009, the County began construction of Fire Station Number 11. This fire station
was constructed in the Cedarcrest / Bentwater Communities. The project was completed
December of 2009.

To address the leisure and recreational needs of its family-focused community, the
County has purchased approximately 160 acres in the Burnt Hickory area, near the 700-
acre, proposed Richland Creek Reservoir site. The construction of this park is in the final
stages. Development began in early 2010 on the County’s third multi-purpose park and
is expected to open in January 2011.

Relevant financial policies

Paulding County’s financial policies were established with the primary goal to provide a
sound basis for future financial planning and conservative management. These policies
include (1) a balanced annual operating budget, (2) maintenance of adequate reserves and
designations of fund balances.

In developing and evaluating the County’s accounting system, consideration is given to
the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal controls are designated to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of financial records for
preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived: and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management. We believe the County’s internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper
recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary control is maintained at the department level by the encumbrance of estimated
purchase amounts before the release of purchase orders to vendors. Open encumbrances
are reported as reservations of fund balances at year-end for governmental funds.

Major Initiatives

For the Year. In preparing the 2010 budget, the County’s staff, under specific directives
from the governing authority, identified several major programs necessary to meet the
citizens’ needs for services and to safeguard the environment. These programs reflect the
County’s commitment to continued improvement in the quality of life for its citizens.

Throughout the year, the County continued its improvement program for transpottation,

which consisted of system additions, improvements to collector roads, and major
intersection improvements.
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Paulding was the first County in Georgia to implement mandatory residential water reuse
for outdoor watering. The County began constructing the expansion and conversion of
the County’s oldest Wastewater Treatment Facility, the Coppermine Plant, to a
membrane bioreactor plant, enabling the plant to obtain a discharge permit and to provide
reuse water for future development in the area. This project was completed in 2009.

Also during the coming years, and to be carried out concurrently with the airport project,
the County will work closely with the Industrial Building Authority in an aggressive
pursuit of economic development. Planned projects include the acquisition of land
adjacent to the planned airport for the development of a business park, as well as other
business park developments in close proximity to the County’s existing sewer plants.
The most notable business pare is the 100 acre Industrial Park equipped with a Norfolk-
Southern rail spur. This site is capable of housing facilities up to 500,000 square feet. It
will be located off of the Bill Carruth Parkway which is currently under construction for
widening to four lanes, coinpletion is anticipated in Summer 2011.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County for its comprehensive
annual fmancial report for the year ended June 30, 2009, This was the fourteenth,
consecutive year that the County has received this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only, We believe that our
cutrent comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was
made possible by the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance
Department. Each member of the department has my sincere appreciation for the
contributions made in the preparation of this report.

In closing, without the progressive leadership of the Board of Commissioners,
preparation of this report would not have been made possible.

Respectfully submitted,
Tabitha Pollard Michael L. Jones, P.E.
Finance Director County Administrator
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AULDIN
& JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Paulding County, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
agpregate remaining fund information of Paulding County, Georgia (the “County”), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Paulding County Board of Health Department, the Paulding County
Industrial Building Authority, and the Paulding County Airport Authority, which represents 100% and
100% respectively, of the assets and revenue of the aggregate discretely presented component units.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Paulding County Board of Health
Department, the Paulding County Industrial Building Authority, and the Paulding County Airport
Authority, is based on the reports of the other auditors. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material tisstatement. An audit includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounis
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions,

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discreicly presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Paulding County, Georgia, as of June
30, 2010 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

200 GALLERIA PARKAWAY S.E, SUITE 1700 » ATLANTA, GA 30139-5046 » 770-955-8600 » 300-277-0080 » FAX 770-980-4489 + www.mcpa.com
Members of The Aerican Institute of Certified Public Acconntants » RSM Intemational




In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 18, 2010, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters, The purpose of that report is o describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not (o provide an opinion on
iniernal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis (on pages 4 through 12), schedule of funding progress
(on page 59), and budgetary comparison information (on pages 60, 61 and 63) are not a required part of
the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information, However, we did not audit the information and express-no
opinion on it,

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, as listed in the accompanying
table of contenis, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statemenis taken as a whole. The introductory and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Mos@ i & &,&m L

Atlanta, Georgia
December 18, 2010




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Paulding County Government, we offer readers of Paulding County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Paulding County for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages
iv through ix of this report.

All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands for dollars.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of Paulding County exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2010, by $487,633 (net asseis),
an increase of $13,330 from the prior year. Ofthis amount, $27,230 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

o As of June 30, 2010, Paulding County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $56,994, an increase of $4,956 from the prior year. Approximately $25,714 is
available for spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

o  Atthe fiscal year end, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $16,470, or 31 percent of
general fund expenditures.

o Paulding County’s governmental activities bonds payable, net decreased by $2,906 from the prior
year and the iotal general obligation long-term debt at June 30, 2010 was $81,780, compared to a
legal debt limit of $329,516.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Paulding County’s basic financial
statements. Paulding County’s basic financial stalements comprise three components: 1} govermnent-wide
financial statewnents, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide the reader with a broad overview of Paulding County’s financial position in a manner similar to
private-sector business. These siatemnents include the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities and can be found on pages 14 through 17 of this report.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of Paulding County’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how Paulding County’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this siatement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., for uncollected taxes and earned but unused employee leave). Because the Statement of
Activities separates program, or function revenue (revenue generated by specific functions through charges
for services, granis and contribuiions) from general revenue (revenue provided by taxes and other sources
not tied to a specific function), it shows to what extent each function must rely on taxes for funding. All
changes in net assels are reported using the accrual basis of accounting which is similar to the method used
by most private-sector enterprises. The accrual basis of accounting requires that revenues be reported when
they are earned and expenses are reported when the goods and services are received, regardless of the
timing of the cash flows. Items such as uncollected taxes, unpaid vendor inveices for items received during




the fiscal year, and earned, but unused employee leave, are included in the Statement of Aciivities as
revenues and expenses, even though the cash associated with these items was not received nor distributed
during the fiscal year.

Paulding County has identified the Paulding County Industrial Building Authority (IBA), Paulding County
Airport Authority and the Panlding County Board of Health as component uniis due to the significance of
their operational or financial relationships with the County. Financial information for these component
units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the prunary government itseif.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 — 17 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Paulding County, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of Paulding County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds. Governmental funds are used to account for most or all of the County’s tax-supported
activities. Proprietary funds are used to account for the County’s business-like activities, where all or a
substantial portion of the costs of activities are supported by fees and charges paid direcily by users of the
services. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources that are held by the County as a trustee or agent
for parties outside of County government. The resources of the fiduciary funds cannot be used to support
the County’s own programs.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used fo account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balance of expendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revennes, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmenial
funds and governmental activities.

Paulding County maintains fourteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmenial fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the SPLOST III fund, the fire tax fund and the capital
projects fund all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmenta)l funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Pauiding County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison
stateinents for these funds have been provided to demonsirate compliance with these budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 through 61f this report.
Proprietary funds. Paulding County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds

are used to report the same funciions presented as business-type activities in the governmeni-wide financial
statements. Paulding County uses enterprise funds to account for its Water and Sewer System, Solid Waste




operations and the Department of Family and Children’s Services building. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and atlocate costs internally across the County’s various functions.
Paulding County uses an internal service fund to account for its employee health insurance plan. Revenues
and expenses of the internal service funds that are duplicated in other funds through allocations are
eliminated in the government-wide statements, with the remaining balances included in the governmental
activities column.

The enterprise fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water and Sewer Sysiein
which is to be considered a major fund of Paulding County. The other two enterprise funds of the County
are aggregated into a single presentation in the basic proprietary fund financial statemenis. Individual fund
data for each of the non-major proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements. The
proprietary fund combining statements follow the governmental fund combining statements in this report,
on pages 93 through 95.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the County government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources of those funds are not available to support Paulding County’s own programns. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund
financial statemenis can be found on page 97.

Notes to the financial stafemenis. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statemenis are on pages 27 through 61.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial stateinents and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning Paulding County’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits and budgetary comparison information. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 63 through 66 of this repoit.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the
County’s financial position. As of June 30, 2010, Paulding County’s combined (government and business-
type activities) assets exceeded liabilities by $487,633. A significant portion of the County’s net assets, 84
percent, is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, and equipment), less related
outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. Because Paulding County uses these capital assets
to provide services to its residents, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Paulding
County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used fo liquidate these liabilities. ‘




Paulding County's Net Assels
for the year ended June 30,

Governmenial Business-type
2009 20609
2010 2009 2010 Restated 2010 Restaled

Current and other assets $ 67,520 S 66,170 $ 37944 § 48463 S 105464 5 114,633
Capital Assets 379,562 370,460 165,708 160,873 545270 531,333

Total Assets 447,082 436,630 203,652 209,336 650,734 645,966
Lon-term liabilities .
ouistanding 27,978 90,251 61,668 64,094 149,646 154,345
Uther habimnes 7,644 9,636 5,810 7,681 13 454 17,317

Total liabilities 95,622 99,887 67,478 71,775 163,100 171,662
Net asseis:
Invesied in capital assets, netl
of related debt 297,040 286,905 111,121 115,095 408,161 402,000
Resricied 33,746 31,811 18,497 19,905 52,243 51,716
Unrestricted 20,674 18,027 6,556 2,561 27,230 20,588

lotal net assels $ 351,460 S 336743 S 136074 S 137,561 S 487,634 S 474304

An additional portion of the County’ net assets for governmental activities, $33,746; and for business-type
activities, $18,497, represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.
The governmental resiricted resources represent SPLOST funds for roads, recreation and public safety
capital improvements, and certain judicial expenses or activities. The $10,116 for business-type activities
is resiricted fo water and sewer system improvements and $8,381 is restricted for debt service. The
remaining balances of unrestricted assets, $20,674 for governmental activities, and $6,884 for business-
type aciivities may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

At June 30, 2010, Paulding County is able to repori positive balances in all categories of net assets, both for
the government as a whole, and for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Paulding County’s property taxes increased $2,350 a 6 percent increase from the prior year. Sales and
other taxes decreased by $173 or about 1 percent from last year. Increases in tax revenue are attributable to
an increase in millage rate, particularly the debt service millage rate. Approximately 25 percent of the
County’s total revenue from governmental activities came from sales tax and 45 percent from property tax.
Charges for goods and services provided about 12 percent of governmental revenue. With funding from
the Federal Aviation Administration and the Georgia Department of Transportation, the County is building
a general aviation airport. The project is nearing complete with hangers now being completed. Decrease in
capifal grants and confribution is the result of decrease in contributed assets. Grants from Federal Airport
Administration was less in fiscal year 2010 than in 2009. However, the state grants increased due to the
airport terminal construction.

The County’s largest expense is for Public Safety (Sheriff, Fire, Marshall, E-911, EMA and Animal
Control), at $29,170, or 37 percent of total governmental expenses.




Paulding County's Changes in Net Assels
For the year ¢ended June 30
(as reslated)

Governmental Business-fype
— . \
Revenues: 2010 2409 20190 2009 2010 2009

Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 11,250 $ 10,635 £ 23,057 5 21,409 < 34,307 b 32,044
Operaling grants and

conlributions 455 1,311 - - 455 1,311
Capital grants and
confributions 9,600 19,614 1,731 1,332 11,331 20,946
General Revenues: - - -
Propérty laxes 42,230 39,823 - - 42,230 39,823
Other taxes 31,271 29,746 - - 31,271 29,746
Other 193 782 113 445 306 1,227
Total Revenues 94,000 101,911 24901 23,186 119,900 125,097
Expenses:
Gengral government 14,099 15,135 - - 14,009 15,135
Judicial 5,152 5,287 - - 5,152 5287
Public safety 29,170 28,967 . - 29,170 28,967
Public works 13,418 17,090 - - 18418 17,090
Culture and recrealion 3,408 3,350 - - 3,408 3,350
Healih and wel fare 1,914 1,811 - - 1,914 1,811
Housing and
development 2,835 2,233 - - 2,835 2,133
Intergovermnenial 4,056 - - - 4,056 -
Interest on long-lerm
debt 3,685 3,915 - - 3,685 31,915
Water and sewer - - 22,765 20,444 22,765 20,444
Other programs - - 1,068 3,067 1,068 3,067
Total Expenses 82,737 77,788 23,833 23511 106,570 101,299
Increase in nek assels
before transfers 12,262 24,123 1,068 (325) 13,330 23,798
Transfers 2,455 (500} (2,455) 500 - -
Change in net assels 14,717 23,623 (1,387) 175 13,330 23,798
Net assels -beginning, 336,743 313,120 137,561 137,386 474,304 450,506
Net assets ending $ 351460 S 336,743 $ 136,174  § 137,561 $ 487634 5 474304

The $14,717 increase in net assets for governmental activities was attributable to the federally-funded
general aviation airport project, as well as revenues exceeding expenditures. The $1,388 decrease in net
assets for business-type activities was the result of a transfer to the general fund for repayment of bonds
made on behalf of the IBA. The restatement of business-type activities is for an intergovernmental payable
to the IBA to fund the 2003 debt issued to construct the Upper Sweetwater Sewer Treatment Facility The
Landfill’s long term liabilities of $3,216 allow for closure and posi-closure care costs.




Revenues by Source for Governmental Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Paulding County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. _The focus of the County’s governmenial funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Paulding County ended the 2010 fiscal year with positive fund balances in its governmental funds. The
combined fund balance for the governmental funds is $56,994, Of that amount, fund balances in the
County’s four major funds are $19,893 in the General Fund, $6,415 in the Fire Fund, $24,365 in SPLOST
1l Fund and $ 2,432 in Capital Projects Fund. Approximately 45 percent of tofal governmental fund
balances, $25,714 in the General, major and non-major funds, is unreserved and available for spending in
the coming year. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior
period ($17,563); 2) to pay debt service ($1,060); 3) to pay for capital improvements projects ($12,329);
and 4) for other restricted purposes ($329). The $12,143 fund balance in SPLOST III will be spent to
construct a major County park facility, a fire station and other public safety facilities, as well as road
improvements.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of Paulding County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $16,470, while total fund balance was $19,893. Asa
measure of the County’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the unreserved and total fund balance
to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 31 percent of total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 37 percent of that same amount,

The fund balance of the General Fund increased by $2,971. While revenues declined, expenditures were
also reduced to offset the decline in revenue. However, transfers from the Water and Sewer Fund of $2,705
and a transfer to Capital Projecis fund in the amount of $2,000 was made during the year. Changes in
revenue from the prior year are as follows:

o Total revenue decreased by $8,599 from the prior year.

o Properly tax revenue increased by $2,350 with the addition of new residential and commercial
properties, while the local option sales tax increased by $512 along with the decline in consumer
spending.

o Charges for services decreased $337, as a result of a decline in residential development.

o The reduction of assessed values has resulted in a decrease to tax commissions revenue of $538,

The fund balance of the Fire Tax Fund increased by $1,113. The fund balance of the SPLOST III fund also
increased $430. While in the Fire Tax Fund and SPLOST III fund revenues declined, expenses were also
reduced to offset the decline in revenue.

Proprietary Funds

Paulding County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail,

Two of the County’s Enterprise Funds, the Water and Sewer System and Solid Waste Disposal, provide
services to the general public and require periodic evaluation and determination of revenues. The County
also maintains an Enterprise Fund for a rental facility which is currently leased to the State of Georgia,
Department of Family and Children’s Services and Child Support Enforcement.
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The largest, and only major Entetprise Fund is the Water and Sewer Fund. Total revenue from the Water
and Sewer System for 2010 (excluding interest) was $21,814 representing a 5 percent increase from 2009.
Due to Georgia’s drought and state-mandated watering restrictions, water demand was less than the prior
year. The County, along with other metro counties subsequently implemented a rate increase to offset the
11% increase in expenses. The cost of the County’s water purchased increased 18% from 2009. This
increase was due to an increase passed on to the County by the County’s supplier Cobb County Marietta
Water Authority.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations) is at the
department level. The County’s primary budgeted fund is the General Fund. The Board of Cominissioners
is required to adopt the County’s budget at their first regular meeting each August. The General Fund
Budget was amended during the year for an increase in appropriations of $4,268. The mnost notable
expenditure amendments are as follows:

o Public Works increased by $3,640 this was due to the September 2009flood experienced by
Paulding County. President Obaina issued a federal disaster declaration. Therefore, we
received federal and state funding for approximately 85 percent of these damages and the
remaining 15 percent was funded with fund balance.

o $121 increase in Public Safety appropriations was made primarily to the Sheriff’s Office and
Detention Center to account increased fuel costs, inmate medical expenses.

o Health and Welfare increased by $124 and Judicial increased by $130; Housing &
Development increased by $ 601.

o General Govermnent appropriations were reduced by $349 due to conservative spending by
all departments.

Indicative of decreased consumer activity and general economic trends, sales tax revenue decreased 2%,
other taxes decreased 13%, while property taxes increased 6 %. The increase in property tax was the effect
of bonded debt requiring an increase to the millage rate. At June 30, 2010, General Fund revenues
exceeded estimates by $ 498, and expenditures were $2,497 less than budget. The General Funds balance
increased by $3,194.

Budget versus actual amounts. Paulding County General Fund remained within the operating budget
during fiscal year 2010.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2010 amounts to $407,832 (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings and systems, machinery and equipment, and construction in progress.

The total increase in Paulding County’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1
percent. Additional information on Paulding County’s capital assets can be found in note E on pages 39
through 42 of this report.

Long-term debt. At June 30, 2010, Paulding County had a total of $130,235 in outstanding bonded debt.
That amount represents $81,780 in General Obligation Courthouse, Jail, Administrative Building,
Reservoir, conservation and Government Comnplex Bonds; and $48,455 in Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds. The County also had one installment purchase agreement with an outstanding balance of $1,248,
and one Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority loan totaling $156.

Paulding County maintains an “Aa3” rating froin Moody’s and an “AA” rating from Standard and Poor’s

on its General Obligation debt and an “AA” rating from Moody’s and an “AA-stable” rating from Standard
and Poor’s on its Revenue debt.
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Additional inforination on the County’s long-term debt can be found in note G. on pages 43 through 50.

Economic Factors and Next year’s Budgets and Rates

o The unemployment rate for Paulding County was up from last year, at 10.8 percent. This rate
compared to the state’s rate of 10.3 percent,

o For the tax year 2009, the County’s total tax digest decreased by $259,450 or 6 percent, resulting
in a slight increase to the millage rate from 2008. In 2007, Paulding County bonded debt to
construct the Watson Government Complex and the voters approved the purchase of greenspace
land, The total debt was $79,885. In 2009, a millage rate increase was imposed to repay this debt.
Previous to this time Paulding County used excess Fund Balance to cover the debt.

o Paulding County’s general purpose Local Option Sales Tax enabled the County to rollback its
property tax rate by 3.08 mills for the 2009 tax year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Paulding County’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial should be addressed to Paulding County Finance Department, 240
Constitution Boulevard, Dallas, Georgia 30132,
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Paulding County, Georgia
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For (he year ended June 30, 2010

Nonmajor Tolal
Major Governmental Funds Governmental  Governmental
General Fire Tax SPLOST IMT Capilal Profects Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes S 45906586 S 7909876 $§ 13,506950 3 - % 6183952 S 73,507,364
Licenses and permuts 314,199 - - - - 314,199
Intergavernmenlal 1,743,986 24,503 580,545 5,201,712 - 7,556,745
Charges for services 5,246,344 - - - 2,703,252 7915596
Fings and forfeitures 1,581,155 - - . 595,851 2,177,006
Invesiment income 172 43,717 169,238 9,687 13,577 193,451
Contnibanions and donations 328,142 - 140,982 - - 469,124
Miscellaneous 544,246 - - . - 544,246
Tolal Revenues 55,681,770 1978116 14,337,715 5,217,399 9,496,732 92,711,732
Expenditures
Current
General government 11,207,834 - - - - 11,207,834
Judicial 4,858,674 . - - 186,444 5045118
Public safely 18,437,236 6,731,374 - - 2,309,744 27,534,354
Public works 12,061,587 - 417,480 - - 12,479,067
Health and welfare 1,858,875 - - - - 1,858,875
Culture and recreation 2,617,757 - 2415 200,000 - 2,820,172
Housing and development 2,073,949 - - - - 2,073,949
Debl Service
Principal retirement - - - - 2,545,000 2,545,000
Tnterest and fecs - - - - 1,860,850 3,850,850
Bond issuance costs 135,064 138,064
Capllal ounlay - 127,634 12,137,065 5,886,154 - 18,150,903
Tntergovemmental - - 1,350,696 - - 1,350,694
Tolal expenditures 53,165,912 6.865.058 13,907,656 7,086,154 9,040,102 90,064,882
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 2,515,858 1,113,058 430,059 (1,868,755) 456,630 2,646,350
Other fnancing soarces (uses)
Transfers in 2,705,595 - - 2,000,000 285,000 4,990,595
Transfers out (2,250,000) (285,000) - (2,535,000)
Refunding bonds issued - - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
Premium on bonds issued - - - - 129938 129,938
Payment 10 refunded bond escrow 2gent - . - - {5,275,874) (5,276,874)
Tolal olher financing sources (uses) 455,595 - - 1,715,000 138,064 2,308,659
Nel change in Fund Balance 2,971,453 1,113,058 430,059 (153,755) 594,694 4,955,509
Fund balance, beginning of year 16,921,669 5,302,018 23,935,552 2,586,155 3,293,409 52,038,303
Fund balante, ¢end of year 5 19893122 & 6415076 § 24365611 8 2432400 3 388,100 % 56,9312

20

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of this statement.




Paulding County, Georgia
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN PFUND BALANCES WITH THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ’

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Tolal net change in fund balances - goveramental funds H 4,955,509

Amounts reported For governmentl acuvities in the statement of achvities ace different because:

Capital oullays to purchase or build capital assets arc ceported in govesnmental funds

as expendituces. Hlowever, for govecnmenmal activitics those costs ace shown in the
statemnent of nct assets and allocated over their estimated wse ful lives a5 anoual
depreciation cxpenses in the smtement of activities. ‘The cost of capitil assets sold is
recognized as an expense in the entity wide statemeats but not in the fund level satemenrs

Depreciation expense {12,253,422)

Capinl outhys 19,318,770 1065348
Capim! Assets contributed ace not reported at the fund financial reporting level
but arc reported on the govemment-wide financial reporting level 2,052,231
The aet effect of miscellanecus transackions involving capital assets (sales) is to decrease net assets. (15,739)

Pension asset reported in the satement of acuvities does oot
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
is not reported as a revenue in govemmental funds. 438,036

The issuance of fong-term debt (ponds) provides cureat fimancil resources 1o
govemmeatal funds, while the repayment of the prinapal of long-term debr

consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither tansaction,
however, has any elfect on net assets. Also, govemmental funds repont the effect

of isswance costs, premiums, discounts, and similac items when debt i firse issued, whereas

these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activines.

Refunding bonds issued (5,000,000)
Preminm on bonds issued (129,938)
Payment to refunding agent 3276874
Principle payment on bonds 2,545,000
Bond issuance cost 133,064
Amortization 75,659 2905,659

Property taxes levied for the current and prior years not collected within sisty
days after the County's fiscal ear ends, are not considered "available™
reveoues and are deferced in the govemnmentl funds. Deferred tax

revenues related to prior years incecased by ihis amount this year.

Deferved @ 06/30/10 1410953
Deferred @ 06/30/09 (1,176,606 234,347

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences
(sick pay 2nd vacations) - ar¢ measuted by the amounts camed dunng the year

In the govemnmental funds, however, espenditures lor these items are measured by
the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts paid)

Vacation and sick eamed esceeded amounis paid by this amount.

Lusbifity @ 06/30/10 (2.903,115)
Liability @ 06/30/09 2,335,907 {567,208)

Inserest on long-term debt in the satemeak of zctivities differs from the amount
reported in the govemnmenial funds because interest is recogmized as an expenditure
in the funds when it is due, and thus requites the use of current financial resources
In the statemem of activitics, however, interest expense is recognized 4s the interest

accoues, regardless af when it is due.

Liability @ 06/30/10 (1,547,595)
Liabikity @ 06/30/09 1,617,741 100,146

Debt payments are currenily being made on behalf of a component unit. The
funds paid out for scries A w1l be repaid to the County in future periods. These debt
payments are expensed on the govesnmental fund statements, but a recicvable is

recorded on the government wide statements. (2,451,680

Change in net assets of govemnmental activities 21 $ 14,716,649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.




ASSETS
Cumenl Assets

Cash

Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Toventary

Total current assets

Noncurrent asseis:
Restricled cash and cash equivalenis
Restricled investments
Capital assets
Land
Plant and equipment
Construction in progress
Less: accumnulated depreciation
et capifal assels
Bond issuance and loan costs
Total noncurrent assetls
Tolal assels

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Actounts payzble
Compensated absences

Uncamed revenue
Drue Lo general fund
Due to component unit
Currenl portion of loans payable
Curmrent maturities of long-term debt,
payable from restricted assets
Construction contracts payable
Accrued interest, payable from restricted assets
Customers' deposits, payable from restricted assels

Tolal current habilities

Long-Term Liabililies, nel of cument portion
Due to componeni unit
Revenue bonds payable
Loans payable
Compensated absences
Post closure care cosls

Total tong-term liabililies

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS (Deficit)

Invested in capital assets, net of relaled debt
Restricted for:

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Benelits and Claims
Unresiricted (deficit)

TOTAL NET ASSETS (Deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Paulding County, Georgia

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Buslness-lype Aclivities-Enterprise Funds

Major Fund

Governmenial
Activilies

Water and Nen-Major Internal Service
Sewer Fund Enterprise Funds Total Fund
S 9,272,437 S 112,751 s 9,385,188 $ 24,382
15,880,493 - 15,880,493 -
3,583,825 15,557 3,599,382 -
237,020 - 237,020 -
28,973,775 128,308 29,102,083 24,382
1,993,782 - 2,993,782 -
6,168,560 - 6,168,660 .
1,412,012 612,233 2,024,245 -
197,835,111 5,150,467 203,005,578 .
2,720,026 - 2,720,026 -
(39,816,783) (2.224,642) (42,041,465) -
162,170,366 3,538,018 165,708,384 -
979,166 - 979,166 -
172,311,974 3,538,018 175,819,992 -
201,285,749 3,666,326 204,952,075 24,382
1,534,014 46,464 1,580,475 24,382
152,141 9,378 161,519 -
1,248,721 - 1,248,721 -
1,044,715 255,229 1,299,944 -
335,000 - 335,000 -
86,223 155,586 241,809 -
2,860,000 - 2,860,000 -
328,070 - 328,070 -
172,095 4,492 176,587 -
2,476,567 - 2,476,567 -
10,237,546 471,146 10,708,692 24,382
5,710,000 - 5,710,000 -
47,277,998 - 41,277,998 -
697,866 1,092,854 1,790,720 -
70,478 4413 74,891 -
- 3,215,839 3,215,839 -
33,756,342 4,313,106 58,069,448 -
63,993,888 4,784,252 68,778,140 24,382
108,830,858 2,289,578 111,120,436 -
8,380,947 - 8,380,947 -
10,116,192 - 10,116,192
9,963,864 (3,407,504) 6,356,360 -
$ 137,291,861 s £1,117,926) 8 136,173,935 3 -
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Paulding County, Georgia

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Penalties
Miscellaneous revenues
Landfill and recycling fees
Lease income

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Qperaling expenses
Benefits and claims
Cost of water purchased
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Qperating income (loss)

Neneperating revenues (expenses);
Intergovemmental
Line maintenance fees
Interest income
Rent
Interest expense

Tetal nonoperating revenue {(expenses)
Income before contributions

Capital contributions
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Change in nel assets

Total net assets (deficit)-beginning, before restatement
Restatement

Total net assets (deficit)-after, restatement

Total net assets {deficit)-ending

The accomparying potes are an tntegrol part of this stafement.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Business-type Activilies Enterprise Funds

Major Fund

Governmental
Aclivities

Vater and Non-Major Internal Service
Sewer Enterprise Funds Total Fund
$ 20,494,802 b - $ 20,494,802 $ 207,327
636,250 - 636,250 -
683,195 8,740 691,935 -
- 753,530 753,530 -
- 332,876 332,876 -
21,814,247 1,095,146 22,909,393 207,327
2,160,720 119,623 2,280,343
892,921 30,699 923,620 -
4,183,113 711,889 4,895,002 -
- - - 207,327
8,039,885 - 8,039,885 -
5,062,477 141,556 5,204,033 -
20,339,116 1,003,767 21,342,883 207,327
1,475,131 91,379 1,566,510 -
965,629 - 965,629 -
133,325 - 133,325 -
113,388 184 113,572 -
14,124 - 14,124 -
2425825 (64,139} (2,489,964) -
(1,199,359) (63,955) {1,263,314) -
275,772 27424 303,196 -
765,700 765,700 -
- 250,000 250,000 -
(2,705,595) - (2,705,595} -
(1,664,123) 271,424 (1,386,699} -
145,325,984 (1,395,350} 143,930,634 -
{6,370,000) - (6,370,000) -
138,955,984 {1,395,350) 137,560,634 -
$ 137,291,861 $ (L,117,926) $§ 136,173,935 $ -
23




Paulding County, Georgia
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash paymenis for employee services
and fringe benefits
Cash paid for intecfund services
Cash payments for benefits and claims

Nex cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from non-<capital financing activities:
Transfers in

Net cach provided by noneapital
financing activilies

Cash flows from capital and refated
{financing activitics:
Principal paid on foans
Proceeds from loans
Acquisition and construction of capital asseis
Intergovemimental Revenues
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Proceeds from Bond Issue
Bond Issuance Cost
Interest patd
Line maintenance fee

Capital contabnted

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activitics

Cash fows from investing activities:
Sale of investments
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities

Net increase {decreasc) in cash and cash
eqnivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash cquivalens, June 3¢

Reconciliation to Combining Dalance Sheet
Cash
Restricted cash

The accomponying noles are an integral part of this statement.

Business type Activilies Governmental
Major Fund Activities
Water and Nonnmajor Intemal Service
Sewer Fund Enterprse Funds Total Fund
S 20,452,200 $ 1,093,514 $ 21,545,114 § -
(14,897,481) (871,823) (15,769,304) -
(2.996.286) (150,928) (3,147,214) -
955,289 - 955,289 225,000
- - - (207.327)
3,513,722 10,763 3,584,485 17,673
- 250,000 250,000 -
- 250,000 250,000 -
(103,336) (148,213 (251,549) -
628,459 - 628,459 -
(10,039,181) - (10,039,181) -
965,629 - 965,629 -
(21,030,000) - {(21,030,000) -
18,948,726 - 18,948,726 -
(437,458) - (437,458) -
(2,436,96%) (64,674) {2,501,643) -
133,325 - 133,325 -
765,700 - 765,700 -
{12,605,105) (212,887) (12,817,992) -
13,293,383 - 13,293,383 -
113,388 184 113,572 -
13,406,711 184 13,406,955 -
4,315,389 108,060 4,523,449 17,673
s 23,831,323 s 4,69 S 23836014 3 6,709
$ 28,146,712 $ 112,751 $ 28,259,463 s 24382
S 0,272,437 $ 112,751 S 9,385,188 s 24382
18.874,275 - 18874275 -
$ 28,146,712 $ 112,751 S 28,250,463 $ 24,382




Paulding County, Georgia

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Reconciliation of opemting income to
nck cash provided by operating
achvitics:
Opesatng income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciabion expense
Rental Income
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) deceease in due from other funds
(Increase) deccease in inventones
(Increase) in due from component unit
Increase {decrease) in customer deposits
Tncrease {decrease) in accounts payable
and consteuction cost
Tncrease (dececase) in compensated
absences payable
Tneeease (decrease) in due to sthers
Increase (decrease} in deferred revenuc

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activilies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statenient.

Business iype Aclivilies Governmental
Major Fund Activities
Water and Nonmajor Intemal Service
Sewer Fund Enterprise Funds Total Fund
$ 1,475,131 91,379 ) 1,566,510 -
5,062,477 141,556 5,204,033 -
14,124 - 14,124 -
(590,158) (1,630) (591,738) -
955,289 - 055,289 -
{713,768) - (73,768) -
{1,526,604) - (1,526,809)
8,966 8,966 -
(1,073,911) (2,640) (1,076,551) 17,673
57,355 {60 56,748 -
- {157,295} (157,295) -
(794,979 - (194,979 -
2,038,591 (20,616) 27975 17.673
$ 3,513,722 70,763 $ 3,584,485 17,673
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Paulding County, Georgia
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Agency Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,520,990
Taxes receivable (nef) 3,408,179
$ 5,929,169
Liabilities
Due to others 3 5,929,169

The accomparnying notes are an integral pari of this statemen. 26




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Paulding County, Georgia (the "County") have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principals generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGAAP") as applied
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
more significant of the County's accounting policies arc described below.

1. Reporting Entity

The County is a political subdivision of the State of Georgia and is governed by an elected County
chairman and four elected commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting principles,
these financial statements include the principal financial activities of the County. In accordance with
GASB requirements, the County considered potential component units for inclusion in its financial
reporting entity. The Paulding County Health Department Public Health Program, Paulding County
Industrial Building Authority, and Paulding County Airport Authority are included in the reporting
entity because the Paulding County Board of Commissioners directly appoints a majority of component
unit board members and a financial benefit/burden exists.

Discretely Presented Component Unifs are reported in separate columns in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the Government.

Paulding County Health Department Public Health Program serves the citizens of Paulding County
and is governed by a board of appointed officials. Paulding County Board of Commissioners appoints
the officials to this board. Paulding County also makes monthly contributions to the health department
to assist in operations. Paulding County Health Department operates on a July 1 through June 30 fiscal
year. A copy of the Paulding County Health Department Public Health Program’s financial statements
may be obtained by contacting the following address: Georgia Department of Human Resources
District 1 Unit 1, 1305 Redmond Road, Building 614, Rome, GA 30165-1391.

Paulding County Industrial Building Authority serves the citizens of Paulding County and is governed
by a board of appointed officials. Paulding County Board of Commissioners appoints the officials to
this board. Paulding County also makes monthly contributions to the industrial building authority to
assist in operations. Paulding County Industrial Building Authority issued bonds to provide capital for
the construction of the Industrial Building Park and a Sewer plant to accommodate the park. Paulding
County Industrial Building Authority operates on a July 1 through June 30 fiscal year. A copy of the
Paulding County Industrial Building Authority’s financial statements may be obtained by contacting the
following address: Paulding County Chamber of Commerce, 455 Jimmy Campbell Parkway, Dallas,
Georgia 30132,
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2010
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

1. Revporting Entity - Continued

Paulding County Airport Authority serves the citizens of Paulding County and is governed by board of
appointed officials. Paulding County Board of Commissioners appoints the officials to this board.
Paulding County acts as the fiscal agent for the authority and provides personnel to oversee the
construction and development of the airport. Paulding County Airport Authority operates on a July 1
through June 30 fiscal year. A copy of the Paulding County Airport Authority’s financial statements
may be obtained by contacting the following address: Paulding County Airport Authority, 240
Constitution Boulevard, Dallas, GA 30132.

2. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governinent-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activitics of the County. For the most pait, the
effect of the inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonsirates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefits from goods, services, or priviledges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmental and
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

3. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes arc
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue when all requirements iinposed by the provider have been met.
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2010
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation- Continued

Governmental funds arc used to account for the County’s general government activities.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (ie., when they are “measurable and available™).
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be deterinined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
The County considers all revenues except intergovernmental revenues available if they are collected
within sixty days after ycarend. Intergovernmental revenue is considered available if it is collected
within nine months after year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and
certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations
are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes, alcoholic beverage taxes, licenses, interest and charges for services are susceptible to
accrual and have been recognized as revenue in the current period. Sales taxes collected by

merchants at year end on behalf of the County are also recognized as revenue.

Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the County and
are recognized as revenue at that time.

Expenditure-driven grants arc recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

The County reports the following major funds:

The general fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The fire tax fund accounts for the operations of the firc department as well as capital purchases.

The SPLOST HI capital projects fund accounts for resources which are used exclusively for roads,
public safety, and recreation, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The capital projects fund account for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major capital
projects not being financed by proprietary funds.
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2010
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Continued

The County reports the following non-major fund types:

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes {not including major capital projects.)

The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by
proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. As provided by GASB, the County only applies
applicable FASB pronouncements issued through November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for
its enterprise fund operations if they do not conflict with GASB pronouncements. Proprietary funds
include the following fund types:

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a inanner
similar to private business or where the County has decided that the determination of revenues
earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

The water/sewer enterprise fund is the only major enterprise fund. This fund accounts for the
operations of the water distribution and the sewer collection systems as well as related
construction projects.

Internal service fimds account for operations that provide services to other departments or agencies
of the County, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. Paulding County’s welfare
benefit plan with United Heaithcare is accounted for as an internal service fund. The plan funds up
to two thousand dollars per year for employee insurance coverage.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf
of others. The County’s fiduciary funds are all agency funds.

The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a
measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. This fund
is used to account for assets that the County holds for others in an agency capacity. The County
accounts for assets held with Constitutional Officers for property taxes, fines and fees paid within the
judicial system.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

3, Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Continued

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments-in lieu of taxes where the amounts are
reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the
government’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenucs reported for the various
functions concerned.

4. Budgets

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, debt service, capital projects and special
revenue funds on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project-length financial plans are adopted for capital projects
funds. Annual budgets for the enterprise funds are adopted for management control purposes.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting--under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation--is used
in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of
fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
honored during the subsequent year.

The County utilizes the following schedule in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

a.Prior to June 1, the Chairman submits to the County Commission, a proposed operating budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following July. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

b. The Commission holds a public hearing on the budget, giving notice thereof at least ten days in
advance by publication in the official organ of Paulding County.

c.The budget is then reviewed and adopted or amended by the Commission at the first regular
meeting in August of the year to which it applies.

d.Departmental budgets so adopted require revision by formal action of the Comnission if the
revision is greater than $50,000. No increase can be made to increase budgeted expenditures
without provision also being made for financing such an increase.

e.The legal level of budgetary control is at the department level.

During the year supplemental appropriations were made in the amount of $ 5,583,500. These were
mostly due to the September 2009 flood expenditures of $ 4,268,000. These expenditures were
recorded in the general fund. These additional appropriations were funded by federal grants as well
as fund balance.
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June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits, highly liquid investments such as
money market mutual funds and short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of
the date acquired by the County.

6. Investments

State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies and
corporations, obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S. Government or its agencies, prime
bankers acceptances, the State of Georgia Local Government Investment Pool, obligations of other
political subdivisions of the State of Georgia, and repurchase agreements. Investments are recorded
at fair value. '

7. Short-term/Long-term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other
funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either interfund receivables/payables (i.c., the current
portion of interfund loans) or advances to/from other funds (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund
loans).

Noncurrent portions of Iong-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are offset
equally by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they do
not constituie expendable available financial resources and therefore are not available for
appropriation.

8. Inventory

In the governmental funds the cost of inventory is recorded as an expenditure when acquired
(purchase method) and is not inventoried at year end due to immateriality. Enterprise funds'
inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out method and are
expensed when used (i.e. the consumption method).

32




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

9. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the County's fiscal year end
are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid
amount and reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed. At the
fund reporting level, and equal amount of fund balance is reserved as this amount is not available for
general appropriation.

10. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of Water/Sewer Revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants. Any reimbursements from outside sources for these projects are restricted
accordingly.

Liabilities payable from these restricted assets include accrued interest payable on revenue bonds and
the current portions of revenue bonds payable.

The bond resolutions place restrictions on additional bond issues and contain certain accounting
provisions.

Customer deposits received by the Water and Sewer fund to initiate service are classified as a
restricted asset because funds will be returned to the customer when service is terminated.

11. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include propeity, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
governmental activities in the government-wide statement of net assets and depreciated over their
estimated useful lives in the government-wide statement of activities. Capital assets are defined by
the County as assets with an individual cost of greater than $5,000. Such asseis are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. However, all additions to land
and buildings are capitalized. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation. No depreciation is taken on the donated assets in the same year of contribution.

Depreciation on donated assets and infrastructure begins in the year following donation. Major
outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially

extend lives are not capitalized. Interest costs incurred during construction of capital assets are not
capitalized.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

12. Captial Assets - Continued

Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Buildings 30
Furniture and Fixtures 5-10
Equipment 5-10
Water distribution system 40
Sewer system 40
Infrastructure 40

Infrastructure assets acquired prior to December 31, 1980 are included in the amounts reported.

12. Compensated Absences

On the government-wide statements, vacation and sick pay is accrued and reported as a liability for
the governmental activities similar to business-type activities. Vested or accumulated vacation and
sick leave of the proprictary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of thosc funds as the
benefits accrue to employees. A liability in the governmental funds is reported only if the benefit has
matured.

13. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilitics in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issnances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

14. Fund Equity/Net Assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific

purpose.

In the Statement of Net Assets, equity is reported as net assets and consists of amounts invested in
capital assets, net of related debt, amounts restricted by oulside parties for specific purposes and
unrestricted amounts. When an expense is incurred and both restricted and unrestricted amounts are
available, the restricted amounts are applied first.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

15. Bond Discounts/Premiums/lssuance Costs

On the government-wide statement of net assets and the proprietary fund statement of net assets, bond
premiums and discounts are netted against bonds payable, and bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges. On the government-wide and proprictary fund type statement of activities, bond
premiums and discounts and bond issuance cost are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method.

At the governmental fund financial reporting level, bond premiums and discounts are reported as
other financing souices and uses, separately from the face amount of the bonds issued. Bond issuance

costs are reported as expenditures.

16. Interfund Transactions

Inferfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it
that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing
fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services provided and used, are reported as
transfers.

17. Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets
and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

18. Operating/Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in the proprietary funds ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water/Sewer system, landfill and DFACS
building are charges to customers for services and building lease. The water/sewer system also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds and the intemal service fund
include the cost of service, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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June 30,2010

NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Primary Governtnent

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposils may not
be returned to it. The County reduces its exposure to custodial credit risk by requiring deposits to be
collateralized in accordance with state law, which requires uninsured deposits to be collateralized at
110%. As of June 30, 2010, all of the County’s deposits were insured and collateralized.

Investments held by the County at June 30, 2010 consisted of § 6,168,660 in U.S. Government
Treasury Money Market Funds grouped in restricted cash and excludes $2,541,102 of certificates of
deposits. Fund shares are reported at fair value, and the underlying securities have remaining
maturities of one year or less.

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County’s
investment policy limits the investments with maturities greater than one year to 25%. As a means of
limiting its exposure fo credit risk of investments the County limits its invesiments to those types
disclosed in Note A (6) and by diversifying its investment portfolio. As a means of limiting its
exposure to custodial risk securities are held by an independent third party in the name of the County.

Discretely Presented Component Units

At year end, Paulding County Health Department’s cash deposits are insured by federal depository
insurance or collateralized with securities held by the Health Department’s agent in the Health
Department’s name.
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NOTE C — RECEIVABLES
Receivables as of year end consist of the following:

Primary Government

Major Funds
Fire Capiral Water and Non-Major Trust and
General Tax SPLOST Projects Sewer Funds Agency

Taxes $ 2,690,725 $ 514,267 $ 1,293,936 $ - $ - $ 421,446 $1,787,675
Intergovernmental 1,399,192 - - 1,253,603 - - -
Other 451,925 196,123 21,000 - 4,734,961 376,552 -
Gross receivables 4,541,842 710,390 1,314,936 1,253,603 4,734,961 797,998 1,781,675
Less: Allowance for

uncollecubles (B74,486) (220,572) - - (1,151,136) {136,970) -
Nek reecivables 5 3,667,356 $ 480,818 5 1,314,936 $ 1,253,603 $ 3,583,825 $ 661,028 $1,787,675

The County levies property taxes between August 1 and October 31 based on an assessment date of
January 1. The current year levy date was August 11. Property taxes are due by the later of November
15 or sixty days from the date the property tax bills are mailed at which time penalties and interest are
assessed.

Discretely Presented Component Units

As of June 30, 2010 the Component Units reported the following intergovernmental receivables:

Board of Health $59,863
Industrial Building Authority
Due from Airport Authority $4,526,325
Due from Paulding County 6,045,000
Total Industrial Building Authority $10.571,325
Total Component Units 10,631,188
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NOTE D - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivable and payable balances as of year end are as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Water and Sewer $ 1,044,715
General Fund SPLOST 111 2,154,930
General Fund Non-major Governmental Fund 95,612
General Fund Non-major Enterprise Fund 255,229
General Fund Fire Tax 360,833
Capital Projects General Fund 674,023

$ 4,585,342

The purpose of interfund balances is to provide operations funds with sufficient funds for ongoing
operations. Interfund balances are expected to be repaid within one year,

Transfers — Primary Government:

Fund Transfer In Transfer Out
General Fund $ 2,705,595 $ 2,250,000
Capital Projects Fund 2,000,000 285,000
Nonmajor

Governmental Funds:

Debt Service 285,000
Enterprise Funds:
Water and Sewer 2,705,595
Nonmajor
Landfill 250,000
$ 5,240,595 $ 5,240,595

The General Fund contributes to the Capital Project fund and the Solid Waste Fund. This is a budgeted
expenditures of the General Fund and will continue until the revenues adequately meet the expenditures
of the above mentioned funds. The amount transferred to the General Fund from the Water and Sewer
Fund are for the payments on the intergovernmental contract with the Industrial Building Authority
Component Unit.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30,2010

NOTEE - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Balance
July 1,
2009 Additions
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 50,994,882 § -
Construction in progress 42,663,027 17,520,503
Total capital assets not being
Depreciated 93.,657.909 17,520,503
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 104,523,178 40,920,854
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 33,301,511 1,147,416
Infrastructure 213,350,068 7,263,254
Total capital assets being
Depreciated 351,174,757 49,331,524
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 13,954,561 4,244,923
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 21,735,046 2,674,746
Infrastructure 38.682,837 5,333,753
Total accumulated depreciation 74,372,444 12,253,422
Total capital assets being
Depreciated, net 276,802,313 37.078.102
Total governmental activities capital
Assets, net $370.460,222  $.54,598.605
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Balance

June 30,

Deletions 2010

$ - $50,994,882
45,481,02 14,702,504
45481.,026 65,697,386
- 145,444,032

98,877 34,350,050

- 220,613,322

98.877 400,407,404

- 18,199,484

83,138 24,326,654

- 44,016,590

83.i38  86.542.728
15,739 313,864,676
$_45496,765 $379,562,062




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2010

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS-CONTINUED

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2009 Additions Deleiions 2010
Business-type activities:
Whater/Sewer:
Land h) 1,412,012 $ - $ - s 1,412,012
Construction in Progress 10,962,780 9,923 433 18,166,187 2,720,026
Total capilal assets not being depreciated 12,374,792 9,923,433 18,166,187 4,132,038
Capiial assets being depreciated:
Buildings 1,624,876 10,200 - 1,635,076
Equipment 3,196,871 23,975 - 3,220,846
Water distribution system 106,541,885 100,004 - 106,641,889
Sewer system 638,209,514 18,147,756 - 86,357,300
Total capital assets being depreciated 179,573,176 18,281,935 - 197,855,111
Less accumnlated depreciation for:
Buitdings 539,734 45,070 - 584,804
Equipment 2,290,411 205,251 - 2,495,662
Waler distribution system 25,264,628 2,727,934 - 217,992,562
Sewer syslem 6,659,533 2,084,222 - 8,743,755
Total accumulated depreciation 34,754,306 5,062,477 - 39,816,783
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 144,818,870 13,219,458 - 158,038,328
Water and sewer capital assets, net s 157,193,662 $ 23,142 891 § 18,166,187 $ 162,170,366
Other business-type activity programs:
Land $ 612,233 - - 612,233
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,650477 - - 3,650,477
Equipment 1,499,990 - - 1,499,990
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,150,467 - - 5,150,467
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 839,283 77.862 - 917,145
Equipment 1,243,843 63,694 - 1,307,537
Total accumulated depreciation 2,083,126 141,556 - 2,224,682
Total capilal assets, being
depreciated, net 3,067,341 (141,556) - 2,925,785
Other enterprise funds capital assets, ner 3,679,574 (141,556) - 3,538,018
Business-iype aciivities capital assels, net % 160,873,236 $ 23,001,335 $ 18,166,187 $ 165,708,384
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NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS-CONTINUED

Depreciation expense on assets used by governmental activities was charged to functions

as follows:
Governmental Funds:
General government $ 3,053,282
Judicial 106,526
Public safety 1,626,075
Public works 5,864,572
Culture and recreation 525,954
Health and welfare 55,423
Housing and development 1,021,590
Total depreciation expense-governmental funds $ 12,253,422
Business-type Funds
Water/Sewer $ 5,062,477
Landfill 63,694
DFCS Facility 77.862
Total depreciation expense ~ business-type activities § 5,204,033

Discretely Presented Component Units

Activity for the Industrial Building Authority for the year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2009 Additions Deletions 2010
Business Type activities:
Capital assels not being depreciated
Land $ 787,221 $ 729,781 b - $ 1,517,002
Construction in progress - 134,709 - 134,709
Total capital assets not being
Depreciated 787,221 864.490 - 1,651,711
Capital assets being depreciated
Equipment, infrastructure and vehicles 20,675 123,867 - 144,542
Less accumulated depreciation for
Equipment, Infrastructure and vehicles 16,126 4,689 - 20,815
Total capital assets being
Depreciated, net 4,549 119,179 - 123,728

Total Industrial Building Authority capital
Assets, net 1,770 $ 983,670 b - 1,775,439
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Discretely Presented Component Units-continued

Activity for the Alrport Authority for the year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2009 Additions Deletions 2010
Business Type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 4,593,034 3 - $ (729,781) $ 3,863,253
Construction in progress 299.114 13.291 - 312,405
Total capital assets not being
Depreciated 4.892,148 13,291 (729.781) 4.175.658
Capital assets being depreciated
Equipment, infrastructure and vehicles __ 49,522 286,982 - 336.504
Less accumulated depreciation for
Equipment, infrastructure and vehicles - 4,825 - 4.825
Total capital assets being
Depreciated, net 49,522 282,158 - 331.679
Total Airport Authority capital
Assets, net 41,670 § 295449 $ (729.781) $ 4507337

NOTE F - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE COST

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfill when
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years
after closure. Governmental accounting standards require the County to estimate and accrue for future
costs associated with the closure and post-closure care of the landfill. In addition to operating expenses
related to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related liability are recognized
based on the future closure and post-closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the
landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and post-closure care costs is
based on the amount of the landfill capacity used during the year. The recorded liability for landfill
closure and post-closure care costs at year end totaled $3,215,839. This amount is based on the total
estimated cost of closure and post-closure costs multiplied by management's estimate of the percentage
of landfill capacity used at year end (94%). The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and
post-closure care (approximately $3,421,105) is based on the amount that would be paid if all
equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired as
of June 30, 2010. However, the actual cost of closure and post-closure care may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations. As of June 30, 2010 it is
estimated that the remaining life of the landfill is eight years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2010

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT

1. Changes in Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in general long-term debt during the year.

Batance Balance Duge within
June 30,
June 30, 2009 Additions Payments 2010 1 year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable
2003 Refunding &
Improvements $ 2,060,000 $ - $ (670,000) $ 1,350,000 $ 685,000
Series 1999 peneral obligation
bonds - Courthouse Annex
and Jail Project 2,685,000 - (2,685,000) - -
Series 1999 general obligation
bonds - Water Reservoir
Projecl 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) - -
Series 2007 general obligation
bonds- Conservation Project 14,155,000 - (760,000) 13,395,000 790,000
Series 2007 general obligation
bonds-Gov'i Complex
Project 62,890,000 - {895,000) 61,995,000 920,000
Series 2009 Refunding - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 -
Unamortized Bond Premium 3,375,141 129,938 (148,376} 3,356,703 -
Less deferred amounts
On refunding - (61,874} - (61,874) -
Tolal Bonds Payable 86,947,561 5,068,064 (7,908,376) 85,074,829 2,395,000
Coimnpensated absences 2,335,907 2,264,240 (1,697,032) 2,903,115 2,109,107
Governmental aclivity
Long-term liabilities $ 89283468 $ 7,332,304 $ (9,605,408) $87,977,944 $ 4,504,107

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the Genetal Fund.
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June 30, 2010

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

1. Changes in Long-Term Debt - Continued

Balance Balance Due within
June 30,
June 30, 2009 Additions Payments 2010 1 year
Business-type activities:
Bonds Payable

1993 Water Revenue Bonds  § 5,820,000 - (1,030,000) 4,750,000 1,095,000

1999 Water Revenue Bonds 18,690,000 - {18,620,000) - -

2004 Water Revenue Bonds 11,480,000 - (610,000) 10,870,000 630,000

2009 Water Revenue Bonds 15,740,000 - {700,000) 15,040,000 715,000

2009A Water Revenue Bond: - 17,755,000 - 17,755,000 420,000

Unamortized Bond

Premium 1,075,080 1,193,726 (193,561) 2,075,245 -

Deferred Bond

Refunding Cost (132,601) (373,268) 113,622 {392,247) -

Total Bonds Payable 52,672,479 18,575,458 (21,109,939) 50,137,998 2,860,000
Loans Payable

1989 GEFA loan 21,701 - (21,701} - -

1993 GEFA loan 237,265 - (81,635) 155,630 86,223

2010 GEFA loan - 628,459 - 628,459 : -
2001 Instaliment note 1,396,653 - {148,213) 1,248,440 155,586
Intergovernmental payable,

Industrial Building Authority 6,370,000 - (325,000) 6,045,000 335,000
Compensated Absences 179,661 180,201 (123,453) 236,409 161,519
Landfill Closure/Post Closure 3,215,839 - - 3,215,839 -

Business-type activities
Long-term liabilities  $ 64,093,598 $19,384,118 $(21,809,941) $61,667,775 $3,598,328
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

2. General Obligation Bonds

General obligations bonds at year end consisted of following:

Series 2003 general obligation refunding and improvement bonds (original amount - $5,100,000) due
in annual principal maturities of $570,000 to $705,000 through August 2011; interest at 2.94%,
payable August | and February 1. The 2003 bond issue refunded the 1993 bond issue.

Series 2007 general obligation bonds (original amount - $14,885,000) due in principal maturities of
$730,000 to $1,315,000 through 2023; interest at 4.00% payable August 1 and February 1. The 2007
Conservation issue provided financing for acquiring land to conserve open space. _

Series 2007 general obligation bonds (original amount - $65,000,000) due in principal maturities of
$895,000 to $4,885,000 through 2032; interest at 4.00% to 5.00% payable August 1 and February 1.
The 2007 Courthouse-Government Complex issue provided financing for construction of the
courthouse and administration building.

Series 2009 general obligation bonds (original amouat - $5,000,000) due in principal maturities of

$65,000 to $ 1,290,000 through 2015; interest at 2.25% to 3.00% payable August 1 and February 1.
The 2009 bond issue refunded the 1999 bond issue.
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Paulding County, Georgia

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2010

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

2. General Obligation Bonds - Continued

Future maturitics of principal and interest on general obligation bonds at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

Principal

$ 2,395,000
$ 2,545,000
$ 2,970,000
$ 3,065,000
$ 3,180,000
$ 3,295,000
$ 3,410,000
$ 3,580,000

" $3,755,000
- $3,945,000

$ 4,130,000
$ 4,330,000
$ 4,500,000
$ 3,345,000
$ 3,510,000
$ 3,685,000
$ 3,870,000
$ 4,055,000
$ 4,250,000
$ 4,430,000
$ 4,650,000
$ 4,885,000

81 000
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Interest

$ 3,688,358
$ 3,597,852
$ 3,501,638
$ 3,400,876
$ 3,285,663
$ 3,174,401
$ 3,060,113
$2,891,012
$2,716,188
$ 2,529,838
$2,337,413
$ 2,142,063
$ 1,967,863
$1,782,313
$ 1,615,063
$ 1,439,563
$ 1,255,313
$1,071,488
$ 878,875
$ 698,250
$ 476,750

$ 244250

$47,755,137

Total

$ 6,083,359
$ 6,142,852
$ 6,471,638
$ 6,465,876
$ 6,465,663
$ 6,469,401
$6,470,113
$6,471,012
$6,471,188
$ 6,474,838
$ 6,467,413
$ 6,472,063
$ 6,467,863
$5,127,313
$ 5,125,063
$ 5,124,563
$5,125,313
$ 5,126,488
$ 5,128,875
$ 5,128,250
$ 5,126,750

$5,129,250
$129,535,137




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2010

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

3. Water Revenue Bonds

Outstanding revenue bonds at June 30, 2010, collateralized by all revenues of the County's water and
sewer system, consist of the following:

Series 1993 A & B revenue bonds (original amount - $16,910,000) due in

principal maturities of $560,000 to $1,035,000 through 2013; interest at

3.50% to 6.00% payable June 1 and December 1. The 1993 issue provided

financing for water and sewer infrastructure. $ 4,790,000

Series 2004 revenue bonds (original amount - $ 13,675,000) due in

principal maturities of $ 475,000 to $ 1,375,000 through 2022; interest

at 3.00% to 5.00% payable June 1 and December 1. The 2004 issue

provided financing for water and sewer infrastructure. 10,870,000

Series 2009 revenue bonds (original amount - $ 15,740,000) due in

principal maturities of $ 700,000 to $ 4,920,000 through 2023; interest

at 2.00% to 5.00% payable June 1 and December 1. The 2009 issue

provided financing for water and sewer infrastructure. 15,040,000

Series 2009A revenue bonds (original amount - $ 17,755,000) due in
principal maturities of $ 420,000 to $ 2,150,000 through 2021; interest
at 2.00% to 5.00% payable June I and December 1. The 2009A issue

refunded the 1999 bond issue. 17,755,000

Gross bonds payable 48,455,000
Less: Unamortized deferred loss on refunding (392,247)

Unainortized bond premium 2,075,245

Net bonds payable $ 50,137.998
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2010

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

1. Water Revenué Bonds - Continued

The following is a summary of Water Revenue bond debt service to maturity as of year end:

Year ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 2,860,000 $2,003,118 $ 4,863,118
2012 3,000,000 1,883,644 4,883,644
2013 3,130,000 1,753,856 4,883,856
2014 3,260,000 1,618,994 4,878,994
2015 3,405,000 1,494,081 4,899,081
2016 3,520,000 1,381,575 4,901,575
2017 3,635,000 1,241,493 4,876,493
2018 3,810,000 1,090,132 4,900,132
2019 3,950,000 240,300 4,890,300
2020 4,110,000 765,378 4,875,378
2021 4,315,000 563,425 4,878,425
2022 4,450,000 342,050 4,882,050
2023 4.920.000 114,275 5.034.275

$ 48,455,000 $15,192,321 $.63,647,321

The County has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to
repay $48.455 million in water revenue bonds issued from 1993 to 2009. Proceeds from the
bonds provided financing for water and sewer infrastructure. The bonds are payable from
water customer net revenues and are payable through 2023. Annual principal and inferest
payments on the bonds are expected to require approximately less than 20 percent of operating
revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $63,647,321.
Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer revenues were $4,115,169
and $21,814,247, respectively.

4.Current Refundings

During 2009, the County issued General Obligation Bonds to refund the 1999 General
Obligation Bonds, The refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and
the carrying amount of the old debt of $61,874. This difference reported in the accompanying
financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, and is being charged to operations
through the year 2016 using the bonds outstanding method. The County refunded the 1999
Series Bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 6 years by $ 792,604 and to
obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service
payments) of approximately $480,691.
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2009

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

2.Current Refundings - Continued

During 2009, the County issued Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds to refund the 1999 Water &
Sewer Revenue Bonds. The refunding resulted in a difference between the requisition price
and the carrying amount of the old debt of $§ 354,652. This difference reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, and is being charged to
operations through the year 2023 using the bonds ouistanding method. The County refunded
the 1999 Series Bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 12 years by
$1,890,563 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old
and new debt service payments) of approximately $1,513,859. As of June 30, 2010 the
refunded bonds were completely defeased.

5. Loans Payable

Outstanding loans of the Water and Sewer Fund and Non-major Enterprise Funds at year end,
consist of the following:

1993 loan (original amount - $1,075,462) payable in quaiterly instaliments
of $23,644, including interest at 6.25%, through January 1, 2012,
provide financing for expansion of water and sewer infrastructure, $ 156,265

Intergovernmental payable to Industrial Building Authority (original amount —
$ 6,370,000} due in semiannual installments of $335,000 to $500,000 through
2023; interest at 3.00% to 4.30% payable June 1 and December 1. This payable
Funds the 2003 Series B & C issued to construct a sewer treatment plant 6,045,000

2001 Installment sale note agreement (original amount - $2,523,500)
payable in monthly installments of $20,087, including interest at
3.90%, through June 3, 2015, provide financing for a building leased
to the Department of Family Children Services. 1,248,440
$.7.449,705
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

5. Loans Payable - Continued

The following is a summary of future annual maturities of the loans payable:

Year ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 576,809 $ 305,838 $882,647
2012 582,602 281,479 864,081
2013 531,450 259,451 790,901
2014 554,983 238,238 793,221
2015 574,058 215,393 789,451
2016 598,308 193,194 791,502
2017 606,438 116,119 722,557

2018-2023 3.424.422 571,729 4,002,151

$ 7,449,070 $2.187.441 $9.636,511

6. Other Long-Term Liabilities

In 2010 Paulding County initiated a GEFA Loan application to acquire the resources to install
additional reuse lines. The principal and Interest payments will be established at the time the
project is complete. This project will complete in fiscal year 2011. As of June 30, 2010,
Paulding County has included a long term liability to GEFA in the amount of $628,459.

7. Industrial Building Authority Component Unit Long — Term Debt

On December 1, 2003 the Authority issued $10,995,000 of Revenue Bonds. The bonds were
issued in three separate series for various purposes. Series A (taxable) of the debt in the
amount of $3,085,000 was issued for the purchase of land for an industrial park and is payable
over 15 years at an interest rate not to exceed 5.0%. Series B (tax-exempt) of the debt in the
amount of $4,800,000 was issued for the construction of a wastewater treatment facility project
and is payable over 18 years with a maximum interest rate 0f 4.3%. Series C (tax-exempt) of
the debt in the amount of $3,110,000 were also issued for the construction of a wastewater
treatment facility and is payable over 18 years with a maximum interest rate of 4.0%. The
funds from the 2003B and 2003C Series have been transferred to Paulding County, Georgia to
cover the cost of the Upper Sweet Water Sewer Plant. Ownership of the facility is now with
Paulding County, Georgia.

54




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2010
NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT — CONTINUED

7. Industrial Building Authority Component Unit Long — Term Debt - Continued

The County and the Authority entered into an intergovernmental contract dated December 1,
2003 whereby the County is obligated to make principal and interest payments as they mature.
As a result a receivable is recorded for the Industrial Building Authority to correspond to the
payable to the Industrial Building Authority for the County. The debt service requirement for
this agreement mirror the bonds.

Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2009 Additions Payments June 30, 2010 1 year
Revenue Bonds $ 8,920,000 $ - $ 445,000 $ 8,475,000 $ 460,000
Unamortized Bond Premium 63,996 - 6,400 57,596 -
$ 8,983,996 $ - $ 451,400 $ 8,532,596 $ 460,000
The total annual debt service requirements to maturity for all debts outstanding are as follows:
Year ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 460,000 $ 368,793 $ 828,793
2012 480,000 352,280 832,280
2013 495,000 334,273 829,273
2014 515,000 314,784 829,784
2015 535,000 293,503 828,503
2016-2020 3,020,000 1,095,451 4,115,452
2021-2024 2,970,000 303,845 3,273.845
$ 8475000 $3.062,929 $11,537.929

NOTE H - OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENT

The County leases several buildings to third parties under operating lease agreements. One
lease may be renewed annually through June 30, 2017. One lease may be renewed or extended
in three successive periods of five years. Fiscal year 2010 includes minimum operating lease
agreements totaling $332,876.
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NOTEI- CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year ended June 30, 2010, capital contributions from customers, developers, State

Department of Transportation and the Federal Airport Administration totaled $ 8,025,643
consisting of the following items:

Contributed From Purpose : Amount
Developers Contributed Water Lines Infrastructure $ 10,000
Customers Tap Fees Collected 755,700
Developers Contributed Road Infrastructure 2,052,231
FAA Airport 1,164,573
State of Georgia Airport 4,043,139

$ 8,025,643

NOTE ] - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
County participates in the Association County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) Workers’
Compensation Self-Insurance Fund and the ACCG Interlocal Risk Management Agency
(IRMA) public entity risk pool which operates as a common tisk management and insurance
programs. ACCG establishes and administers this public entity risk pools to prevent or lessen
the incidence and severity of casualty and property losses and workers’ compensation claims
incurred by the County. The ACCG pools are obligated to provide for the cost of claims and
related interest incurred by the County along with the cost of investigating, negotiating and
defending such claims. The County pays an insurance premium to the ACCG pools for
coverage against these risks of loss.

Paulding County contracted a healthcare provider, United Health Care, on May 1, 2005. This
contract replaces the previous self insurance program that Paulding County provided.
However, an internal service fund was established to account for asscts held for insurance
purposes. Claims are also processed through this internal service fund even though it is not a
self insurance program.

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Various claims and legal proceedings are pending against the County seeking monetary
damages and other relief, The amount of liability from all claims and actions cannot be
determined with certainty, but in the opinion of management and legal counsel, the ultimate
liability from all pending legal proceedings, asserted legal claims, and known potential legal
claims which are probable of assertion should not materially affect the financial position of the
County.
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Construction Contracts

As of June 30, 2010, the County's remaining obligation on uncompleted water and sewer
construction contracts totaled approximately $ 1,340,810.

NOTE L - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The County contributes to the Association County Commissioners of Georgia ("ACCG")
Paulding County Defined Benefit Plan (the "Plan"), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating counties in Georgia. Actuarial information included in this footnote is as of
January 1, 2010 (the date of the most recent actuarial valuation date).

All full-time County employees are eligible to participate in the Plan after completing three
years of service. Benefits vest after five years of service. Participants become ¢ligible to retire
at age 65, with 3 years of participation in the Plan. Upon eligibility to retire, participants are
entitled to an annual benefit in the amount of 1% of average compensation up to $6,600 plus
1.5% of average compensation in excess of $6,600 plus $36 for each year of service (up to 35
years) payable as a life annuity. Compensation is averaged over the five-year period
immediately prior to retirement or termination. The Plan also provides benefits in the event of
death or disability. These benefit provisions were established by an adoption agreement
executed by the County Board of Commissioners and may be amended by a similar adoption.

County employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. The County contributes the entire
cost of the Plan, using the projected unit credit actuarial method.

ACCG issues a publicly available actuarial report that includes requited supplementary
information for the Plan. That report may be obtained by calling (770) 563-9368.

Funding Policy

Contributions to the Plan are authorized and may be amended by the Board of Commissioners.
ACCG Plan funding policy provides for the making of required actuarially determined periodic
contributions under the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. This cost method
determines plan liabilities consistent with the standardized measure of pension obligation
described by Statement No. 25 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. In addition,
the cost method determines contributions at rates that, for individual employees, increase
gradually as an employee gets older, and enables sufficient assets to accumulate for such time
as benefits become due.
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Funding Policy — Continued

Any excess of the actuarial accrued liability ("AAL") as of January 1, 1988 over the Plan's
assets as of that date is amortized over closed periods on a two-tier basis as follows: a) if the
value of benefits accumulated as of January 1, 1988 (based on current salary history, not
projected) exceeds the Plan's assets, that excess is amortized over ten years, beginning
January 1, 1988; plus b) the additional unfunded AAL as of January 1, 1988 is amortized
over 30 years, beginning January 1, 1988.

For January 1, 1989, and later valuations, three additional amortization amounts may apply:
¢) the amortization of the change in AAL attributable to Plan amendments over 20 years,
beginning on the effective date of the amendment; plus d) the amortization of the cumulative
difference between the actual calculated unfunded AAL as of the .valuation date and the
expected unfunded AAL (based on the actuarial assuimptions used for funding purposes) over
15 years; plus e) the amortization of the change in unfunded AAL resulting from changes in
actuarial assumptions over 30 years.

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 7.75% per year compounded annually, (b)
projected salary increases of 5.50% (3.0% inflation and 2.5% merit) per year compounded
annually, and (c) no post-retirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of the Plan’s asscts
was determined using the market value of investments. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining
amortization period as of January 1, 2010 was 10 years.

Annual Pension Cost

The following is the schedule of funding progress of the plan as of the most recent valuation
date, Januwary 1, 2010:

Actuarial value of assets $ 16,846,581
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL}) 22,579,553
Unfunded actuvarial accrued liability (WAAL) 5,732,972
Funded ratio 74.6%
Covered Payroll 22,250,062
UAAL as a percentage of

Covered payroll 25.8%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

58




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2010
NOTE L - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLLAN — CONTINUED

Annual Pension Cost - Continued

The County’s actuarially required contribution, pension cost, and decrease in net pension
asset for the year ended June 30, 2010, were computed as follows:

Schedule of Employer Confributions:

Annual Annual Percentage Net Pension
Year ended Required Pension of APC Obligation
June 30 Contribution (ARC) Cost (APC) Contributed (Asset)
2010 1,974,840 1,977,229 100%  $(438,036)
2009 1,765,801 1,703,500 104% (440,425)
2008 1,604,796 1,535,182 105% (378,124)

Derivation of Net Pension Asset:

2009
Net Pension Asset as of Beginning of Prior Year ($440,425)
Annual Pension Cost for Prior Year 1,977,229
Actual contributions to Plan for Prior Year 1,974,840
Decrease in Net Pension Asset 2,389
Net Asset as of End of Year 438,036
Derivation of Annual Pension cost:

Annual Required Contribution $ 1,974,840
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (34,133)
Amortization of Net Pension Obligation 36.522
Annual Pension Cost $1,977,229

Contributions totaling $1,974,840 were paid i accordance with actuarially determined
contribution requirements determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2010
for the 2010 Plan Year. The contributions represented 25.80% of the covered payroll for 2009
and were equal to the required contribution. Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-
term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of Januvary 1, 2010.
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The County adopted the Paulding County Supplemental Retirement Plan on June 1, 2004. This plan is
administered by AIG VALIC. The 401 (a) is a defined contribution plan that covers substantially all
employees.

The County will match any contribution made by an employee to the deferred compensation plan on a 1
to 1 basis up to a maximum contribution by the County of 1% of employees annual salary.
Contributions are calculated and made on a biweekly payroll basis. The Board of Commissioners
establishes required contribution and matching percentages

Employees become eligible for the plan on the date of hire provided they are full-time and work a
minimum of 30 hours per week. Actual participation in the plan begins with the first payroll following
their date of hire, Participants are fully vested in the plan after five years of service.

The County has made the following contributions to the plan:

County Contributions Employee Contributions

2009 $ 294,741 $ 803,285
2010 267232 711,563
$ 561,973 $1,514,848

NOTE N - JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the fifteen
county northwest Georgia area, is a member of the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
(RC). Membership in an RC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA)
Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the RC’s in Georgia. The
RC Council membership includes the chief elected official of each county, the largest
municipality of the county and one non-public member from the county. OCGA 50-8-39.1
provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the RC. During
the year, the County paid $120,495 in dues to the NWGRC. The financial requirements of the
County related to the NWGRC are limited to the amount of its annual dues. Separate financial
statements may be obtained by writing to Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, P. O. Box
1798, Rome, Georgia 30162-1798.

NOTE O — DEFICIT FUND EQUITY
The Solid Waste Fund has a deficit fund equity of $ 2,445,454 as of June 30, 2010. The deficit

occurred due to the recognition of the landfill closure and post-closure care liability as described
in Note F. Annually, a contribution is made from the General Fund to reduce this deficit.

60




Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30,2010
NOTE P - RESTATEMENT

The County made a prior period adjustment to include a payable to the Industrial Building
Authority, a component unit, on the Water & Sewer Funds Statement of Net Assets. This
restatement was in the amount of $6,370,000. This amount includes all future principal payments
for the 2003 Series B and Series C bonds issued to construct a sewer treatment plant. This is a
result of recent changes to the Industrial Building Authority’s plan, the Authority no longer feels
they will need the sewer treatment capacity and therefore have given the plant along with the debt
to the County’s Water & Sewer System.

The Industrial Building Authority also restated the Statement of Net Assets to include a
receivable on the Industrial Building Authority’s statements.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

PAULDING COUNTY, GA

SCHEDULE OF PUNDING PROGRESS

The information presented below on the annual actuarial valuations as of December 31 of each year.

2009
Actarial value of asseis 16,846,381
Actuarial accrued liability
(AAL) 22,579,553
Unfunded actuarial accrued
Labiliry (UAAT) 5,732.972
Funded ratio T4.6%
Covered Payroll 22250062
UAAL as a percentage of
covered payroll 25.8%

2008

14720347

19,962 472

542,125

13.7%
21,106,471

24.8%.

2007
13,763,518
17,491,188
3,727,670
78.7%

18912254

19.7%
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2006
11,772,193
15471,763

3,699,570

76.1%

17,654,200

21.0%

2005
9,852,994
13,776,583
3,023,589

71.5%

15,275,066

25.7%

2004
8,349,900
12,046,648
3,696,748
69.3%

13,413,124

21.6%

2002
7,404,405
10,144,249
2,730,844
73.0%

11,244,906

24.4%




Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Yariances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes 3 45,525,200 S 45,640,500 s 45,906,586 5 266,086
Licenses and permits 392,000 310,000 314,199 4,199
Intergovemmental 230,000 1,703,300 1,743,986 40,686
Charges for services 5,703,000 5,083,000 5.246,344 163,344
Fines and forfeitures 1,400,000 1,525,000 1,581,155 56,155
Tnvestment income 200,000 17,000 17,112 112
Contnbutions and donations - 500,000 328,142 (171,858)
Miscellaneous 215,000 405,000 544,246 119,246
Total Revenues 53,665,200 55,183,800 55,681,770 497,970
Expenditures
Current )
General government 11,747,150 11,398,400 11,207,834 190,566
Judicial 4,881,550 5,012,200 4,858,674 153,526
Pnblic safety 19,252,500 19,373,800 18,487,236 886,564
Public works 9,167,500 12,807,500 12,061,587 745913
Health and welfare ’ 1,823,700 1,948,200 £,858,875 89,325
Culture and recreation 2,723,400 2,723,400 2,617,157 105,643
Tousing and development 1,819,000 2,420,300 2,073,949 346,351
Total Expenditures 51,415,200 55,683,800 53,165,912 2,517,888
Fxeess of revenues
over expenditares 2,250,000 (500,000) 2,515,858 3,015,858
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - .2,750,000 2,705,595 2,705,595
Transfers out (2,250,000) {2,250,000) (2,250,000) -
Total other financing sources {uses) (2,250,000) 500,000 455,595 2,705,595
Excess of revenues and other sources over (under) .
expenditures and other uses 3 - 5 - 2,971,453 3 5,721,453
Fund balance, beginning of year 16,921,669
Fund balance, end of year ] 19,893,122
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FIRE TAX FUND
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
“Taxes ‘ $ 7,654,500 $ 7,500,000 $ 7909876 $ 409,876
Investment Income - - 43,737 43,737
Intergovernmental Revenue - - 24,503 24,503
‘Total Revenues 7,654,500 7,500,000 7,978,116 478,116
Expendiqres
Public Safery
Fire
Personnel Services 6,500,000 6,500,000 6,001,065 498,935
Other Services and Charges 800,000 800,000 736,309 63,691
Capital Outlay 354,500 200,000 127,684 72316
Total expenditures 7,654,500 7,500,000 6,865,058 634,942
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ - S - 1,113,058 $ 1,113,059
Fund balance, beginning of yeac 5,302,018
Fund balance, end of year $ 6,415,076
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2010
NOTE A — ACTUARIAL VALUATION
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as

part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the
latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date: January 1, 2010
Actuarial cost method: Projected unit credit
Asset valuation method: Market value
Amortization method: Level dollar
Remaining amortization period: 10

The amortization period for this plan is closed.

Actuarial Assumptions Utilized:

Investment rate of return: 7.75%
Projected salary increases: 5.5%
Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost of living adjustment None
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Paulding County, Georgia
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2010
NOTE B ~ EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS BY
INDIVIDUAL FUND

Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the department Ievel as follows:

Major Funds
General Fund
Information Technology $89,851
Government Facilities 5,534
Utility Coordinator 21,881
Senior Citizens Van 6,890
SPLOST III Fund
Intergovernmental 1,350,696
Capital Projects Fund
Libraries 200,000
Non-Major funds
Law Library 41,844
Debt Service Fund
Debt Service 265,850

These over expenditures were funded by greater than anticipated revenues in the case of the
general fund, law library, and by fund balance in the SPLOST III fund and capital projects
fund. The intergovernmental expense was the amount recorded and distributed to the cities,
therefore a SPLOST tax revenue was recorded in the same amount.

The Victim Witness Fund, Drug Confiscation Fund and the Sheriff’s Commissary were being
reported as fiduciary funds. Beginning with this report the County is recording them as Special
Revenue Funds. Therefore, they do not have budgets adopted for the current year, however, we
will adopt a budget for these funds in next years budget.
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Yariances
Positive
Original Final Actval MNegative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 45,525,200 $ 45,640,500 $ 45506585 $ 266,086
Licenses and permits 392,000 310,000 314,199 4,159
Intergovemmental 230,000 1,703,300 1,743,986 40,686
Charges for Services 5,703,000 5,083,000 5,246,344 163,344
Fines and Forfeitures 1,400,000 1,525,000 1,581,155 56,155
Investment Income 200,000 17,000 17,112 112
Coninbutions and Donations - 500,000 328,142 {171,855)
Miscellaneous 215.000 405,000 544,246 139246
Total Revenues 53,665,200 55,183,800 55,681,770 497,970
Expenditures
Current
General Government
Adminsitration:
Legishative
Personnel Services 486,700 497,400 486,442 10,958
Operaing Expenditures 127,100 153,000 139,736 13,264
613,800 650,400 626,178 24222
Executive
Personnel Services 192,600 196,400 196,530 {130y
Operating Expenditures 14,700 14,300 12516 1,784
207,300 210,700 209,046 1,654
Elections ’
Personnel Services 191,600 249,600 219,628 9,072
Operating Expenditures 77,000 92,700 63,159 29,541
Capital Outlay - - - -
268,600 342,300 302787 319,513
Finance
Personnel Services 485,100 485,200 483,550 1,650
Operating Expenditures 27,800 30,400 27,338 3,062
512,900 515,600 510,888 4,712
Information Technology
Personnel Seqvices 511,850 486,800 485,708 1,092
Operating Expenditures 519,500 557,600 476,194 80,306
Capital Cutlay 93,100 120,000 201,749 (171,745)
1,124,450 1,164,400 1,254,251 (89,851)
Human Resources
Personnel Services 301,900 291,600 281,590 10,010
Operaing Expendituccs 30,000 26,500 17,633 8,867
331,900 318,100 299,223 1B,877
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
QOriginal Pinal Actual (Negarive)
General Govemment - continued
Government Faciivies:
Personnel Servites 391,100 397,000 392,627 4,373
Operating Expenditurcs 671,100 855,400 865,307 (9207
1,062,200 1,252,400 1,257,934 (5.534)
Tax assessments and Collections
Tax assessors:
Personnel Services 1,160,754 1,241,600 1,223,988 12612
Openating Expenditures 265,500 206,900 161,691 39,209
Capital Cutlay - - - -
1,426,254 1,448,500 1,396,679 51,821
Tax Commissioner -
Personnel Scrvices 802,800 802,800 778,282 24518
Operating Expenditures 200,200 200,200 185,667 14,533
Capikal Cuthy 1,000 7,000 - 1,000
1,010,000 1,010,000 963,949 46,051
Total Tax Assessment and CollecHons 2.436,254 2,458,500 2,360,628 97,872
General Appropriations
Other Expenditures 5,189,746 4,486,000 - 4,386,899 99,101
Total General Government 11,747,150 11,398,400 11,207,834 190,566
Judicial
Superior Court
Personnel Services 457,600 507,500 476,217 31,283
Operating Expenditures 389,000 352,400 347,016 5,384
846,600 839,900 823,233 36,667
Clerk of Superior Court
Pcrsonnel Services 1,022,100 1,022,100 999,387 22,713
Operating Expenditures 69,000 69,000 55,430 13,570
Capital Qullay - - - -
1,091,100 1,091,100 1,054,817 36,283
Probate Court )
Personnel Services 580,200 600,000 601,552 (1,552)
Operating Expenditures 91,700 87,100 83,1719 3,321
671,900 G87,100 685,331 1,769
Magistrate Court
Pemonnel Services 383,400 383,600 378,904 4,696
Operating Expenditurcs 16,400 16,400 11,258 (858)
399,800 400,000 396,162 3,838
District Attomey
Personnel Services 571,500 680,200 671,648 8,552
Operating Bxpenditures 175,750 169,000 163,614 5,386
741,250 849,200 835,262 13,938
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAT BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeled Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual {MNegative)
Judicial - continued
Juvenile Court
Personnel Services 394,300 394,800 340,348 54,452
Openting Expenditurcs 268,000 268,000 278,021 (10,021)
662,800 662,800 618,369 4,431
Public Defender
Personnel Services 172,500 172,500 160,985 11,515
Openating Expenditures 289,600 289,600 284,515 5,085
462,100 462,100 445,500 16,600
Total Judicial 4,881,550 5,012,200 4,858,674 153,526
Public Safety
Coroner
Personnel Senvices 44,100 47,200 38,652 8,548
Operating Bxpenditures 21,500 23,800 22,228 1,572
65,600 71,000 60,880 10,120
Shenfl
Pesonnel Services 11,128,900 11,128,900 10,813,424 315,476
Openting Bxpenditures 1,875,000 1,875,000 1,756,322 118,678
Capital Ouilay 9,500 9,500 38,161 (28,661)
13,013,400 13,013,400 12,607,907 405,493
Jall ‘
Pesonnel Secvices 3,393,200 3,393,200 3,153,587 239,613
Operating Expenditures 1,815,500 1,815,500 1,835,828 (20,328)
Capital Outhay 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
5,213,700 5,213,700 4,989,415 224,285
Marshal
Personnel Services 326,500 326,500 175,734 150,766
Openting Expendituces 66,200 66,200 40,167 26,033
392,700 392,700 215501 176,799
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTU.

GENERAL FUND .
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Pinal Aciual (Negative)
Animal Control
Personnel Services 467,500 502,200 495,799 6,400
Operating Expenditures 94,600 180,800 117,334 63,466
Capital Outlay 5,000 - - -
567,100 653,000 613,133 69,867
Toral Public Safety 15,252,500 19,373,800 18,487,236 886,564
Public Works
Roads and Bridges
Personnel Services 2,970,500 2,970,500 2,810,594 159,906
Openating Lxpenditures 4,097,600 7,597,600 7089990 507,610
Capital Outlay 12,000 12,000 23362 {i1,362)
7,080,100 10,580,100 9,923,946 656,154
Stemmwater -
Personnel Services 375,300 375,300 356,961 18,339
Openating Expendituces 82,850 210,700 192,518 18,182
Capital Qutlay - - - -
458,150 586,000 549,479 35,521
Utility Coordinator
Personnel Scrvices 85,300 85,900 85,903 &)
Operating Expenditures 807,200 814,100 835,978 (21,878)
892,500 00,000 921,881 (21,881)
Maintenance Shop
Personnel Services 02,300 602,300 539,184 63,116
Operating Expenditures 8,600 8,600 - 8,600
610,900 610,900 539,184 71,16
Recycling
Personnel Services 95,900 104,500 106,366 (1,866)
Operating Expenditures 30,350 26,000 20,731 5,269
126,250 130,500 127,007 3,403
Total Public Works 9,167,500 12,801,500 12,061,587 745M3
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

Paulding County, Georgia

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Health and Wellare
Aental Health Grant
General Healith Grang
General Wellare Grant
Paulding Hospital Authority

Senior Citizens Center
Personnel Services
Operating Bxpenditurcs
Capital Outlay

Senior Citizens Van
Pesonnel Services
Operating Expenditurcs

Bus Service
Pemsonnel Services
Operating Expendinurcs

Genenal Appropriations
Operating Bxpenditures
Total Health and Wellarc

Culture and Recreation
Library
Personnel Services
Operating Expenditures

Recreation
Personnel Services
Operating Bxpenditures
Capiral Cuttay

General Appropriations
Operating Expenditures

Total Culture and Recreation

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Varances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
75,000 20,000 18,750 1,250
326,000 326,000 324,245 1,755
28,000 25,000 18,345 6,655
750,000 920,000 890,020 29,930
1,179,000 1,291,000 1,251,410 39,590
190,300 190,300 178,132 12,168
79,500 79,500 74,662 4,838
20,400 20,400 - 20,400
290,200 290,200 252,794 37,406
86,900 86,900 87,084 {184}
17,500 17,500 24,206 {6,706)
104,400 104,400 111,250 {6,890)
141,700 141,700 121,307 20,393
47,400 47,400 58,228 {10,328)
189,100 189,100 179,535 9,565
61,000 73,500 63,846 9,654
1,823,700 1,948,200 1,858,875 89,325
665,300 665,300 660,509 4,791
101,600 101,000 96,609 4,391
766,300 766,300 757,118 9,182
1,169,900 1,169,900 1,043,744 126,156
713,200 743,200 768,808 (55,608)
66,000 66,000 41,230 24,770
1,949,100 1,949,100 1,853,782 05,318
B,00D 8,000 6,857 1,143
2,123,400 2,723,400 2,617,157 105,643
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts VYariances
Pasitive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Housing and Drevelopment
County Extension Secvice:
Personnel Sevvices 31,100 31,100 29,879 1,221
Operating Expendituces 20,200 20,200 15,997 4203
51,300 51,300 45,876 5424
Community Development
Personnel Seevices 941,100 941,100 881,707 59,393
Opernating Expenditures 206,000 217,400 205,282 12,1i8
Capital Quthy 6,500 6,500 6,436 64
1,153,600 1,165,000 1,093,425 71,515
Airport
Personnel Services 120,400 128,300 126,243 2,037
Operaiing BExpenditures 63,700 151,700 133,923 17,777
184,100 280,000 260,186 19,814
General Appropriations
Operating Expenditures 430,000 924,000 674,462 249,538
"Total Heusing and Development 1,819,000 2,420,300 2,073,949 346,352
Total Expenditures 51,415,200 55,683,800 53,165,912 2,511,088
Excess {deficicncy) of revenucs
over (under) expendituces 2,250,000 (500,000) 2,515,858 3,015,858
Other hinancing sources (uses): .
Opcrating transfers in - 2,750,000 2,705,595 (#4,405)
Operating teansfers our (2,230,000) (2,250,000} (2,250,000) -
Total other francing seurces (uses) (2,250,000) 500,000 455,595 (44,405)
Excess (deficiency) ol revenues and other
sources over (unde) expendinres
and other uses § - $ - 2,971,453 $ 2,971,453
Pund balance, beginning of year 16,921,669
PFund balance, end of year $ 19,893,122
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovemmental
Investmenk Income
Contabutions

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Public Salety
Sheriff
Capital Ouday

Public Safety
Capital Outlay

Fire
Capital Cutlay

Emergency Telephone System
Capital Cuday

Total Public Safety

Public Works
Roads, Highways and Bridges
Other Services and Charges
Capital Quthay
‘Total Public Works
Culture 2nd Recreation
Recreation
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Culture and Recreation

Intergovemmental
Toral expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

DUDGET (GAAF BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SPLOST IIT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Year cnded June 30, 2010
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Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Chriginal Final Aclual (Negative)

11,000,000 $ 11,000,000 $ 13,506,950 $ 2,506,950
- - 580,545 580,545

- - 109,238 109,238

- - 140,982 140,982
14,000,000 11,000,000 14,337,715 3,337,715
410,000 500,000 478,307 21,693
410,000 500,000 478,307 21,693
420,000 420,000 - 420,000
420,000 420,000 - 420,000
400,000 2,000,000 1,535,313 464,687
400,000 2,000,000 1,535,313 464,687
100,000 100,000 42,000 58,000
100,000 100,000 42,000 58,000
1,330,000 3,020,000 2,055,620 964,380
1,500,000 500,000 417,480 82,520
4,000,000 5,500,000 5,513,682 (13,682)
5,500,000 6,000,000 5,031,162 68,838
500,000 500,000 2M5 497,585
8,000,000 8,600,000 4,567,763 3,432237
8,500,000 8,500,000 4,570,178 3,929,822
- 1,350,696 (1,350,696)

15,330,000 17,520,000 13,907,656 3,612,344
{4,330,000) §  (6,520,000) 430,059 $ 6950059
23935552
$ 24,365,611




Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgcted Amounts Variances
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 7,000,000 $ 6,000,000 $ 5207712 $  (792,288)
Investment Income - - 9,687 9.Ga7
Total Revenues 7,000,000 6,000,000 5,217,399 {782,601)
Expenditures
General Government
Capital Cutlay 3,000,000 1,500,000 375,837 1,124,163
Total General Government 3,000,000 1,500,000 375,837 1,124,163
Public Works
Roads, Highways and Bridges
Capital Quibay - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Total Public Works - 1,000,000 - 1,600,000
Culwre and Recreadon
Libraries
Capital Outlay - - 200,000 (200,000)
‘Toral Culture and Recreation - - 200,000 (200,000)
Housing and Development
Community Development
Capital Qutlay 500,000 500,000 4,525 495,475
Airport
Capital Outlay 8,500,000 8,000,000 6,505,792 1,494,208
Total Housing and Development 9,000,000 8,500,000 6,510,317 1,989,683
Total expenditures 12,000,000 11,000,000 7,086,154 3,913,846
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (undex) expenditures (5,000,000) (5,000,000) (1,868,755) 3,131,245
Other financing sowrces (uses):
Transfess in 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 -
Transfers out - - {285,000) (285,000)
Tortal other financing sources (uses) 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,715,000 (285,000)
Excess of revenues and other sources over
{under) expenditures and other uses $  (3,000,000) $ (3,000,000 {153,755} § 2846245
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,986,135
FPund balance, end of year § 2432400
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Paulding County, Georgia
Non-major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010

Special Revenue Funds

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specific purposes.

The Vietim Witness Fund accounts for the five percent additional fee placed on fines
and used for victim witness services.

The Emergency 911 Fund accounts for the fee collection and the operation of the
Emergency 911 system within the County.

The Jail Fund accounts for a portion of fine money received from the court system and
expended on inmate supplies and capital purchases.

The Supplemental Juvenile Fund accounts for a portion of fines within the juvenile
court and expended on outside services within the juvenile court system.

The Drug Use Treatment Fund accounts for a portion of fines and expended on
programs within Paulding County to fight drugs.

The Clerk’s Technology Fund accounts for money received from the state. This fee is
assessed every time a deed is purchased on-line. This money is expended on fechnology
in the clerk of superior court’s office.

The Law Library Fund provides for the operation and maintenance of the County’s law
library.

The Sheriff Commissary fund is vsed to account for the receipts and purchases inmates
incur while they are incarcerated.

The Drug Confiscation fund is used to account for the resources public safety officers '
confiscate during a drug charge and expensed in the fight against drugs.

Debt Service Fund

The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being
financed by proprietary funds.
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Paulding County, Georgia
All Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2010
‘Total Total
Non-Major Nonmajor
Special Debt Governmental
Revenue Service Funds
Asscts
Cash and cash equivalenys $ 2641515 % 858,844 3 3,500,359
Receivables, net
Property taxes - 284,476 284,476
Other 302,276 74,276 376,552
Total assets $ 2943791 % 1,212,596 § 4,161,387
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 22,663 % - % 22,663
Due to othee funds 92,753 2,859 95,612
Defersed revenue - 155,009 155,009
Total liabilities 115416 157,868 273,284
Fund Balances
Reserved for:
Debt service 1,059,728 1,059,728
Unreserved:
Undesignated 2,828 315 - 2,828,375
‘I'otal fund batances 2,828,375 1,059,728 3,888,103
‘Total liabilities
and fund balances $ 2943791 % 1,217.596 § 4,161,387
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Paulding County, Georgia
All Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Far the year ended June X}, 2010

Total MNonmajor
Nonmajor Debt Governmenial
Special Revenue Service Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ - $ 6,183,952 $ 6,183,952
Charges for Services 2,703,252 - 2,703,252
Fines and Forfeitures 595,851 - 595,851
Investment Income Fxr| 6,346 13,617
Miscellancous Income - - -
‘L'otal Revenues 3,306,434 6,190,298 9,496,732
Expenditures
Curtent
Judicial 186,444 - 186,444
Public Safery 2,309,744 - 2,309,144
Dcbi Service
Principal retirernent - 2,545,000 2,545,000
Interest and fees - 3,860,850 3,860,850
Refunding bond issuance costs - 138,064 138,064
Total expenditures 2,496,188 6,543,914 92,050,102
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 810,246 (353,616 456,630
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - 285,000 285,000
Rcfunding bonds issued - 5,000,000 5,000,000
Premium on bonds issued 129,938 129,938
Payment to re(unded bond escrow agens - (5,276,874} (5,276,814)
Total ather financing sourccs {uses) - 138,064 138,064
Excess of revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses B10,244 (215,552) 594,694
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,018,12% 1,275,280 3,293,409
Fund balance, end ol year $ 2,828,375 3 1,059,728 $ 3,888,103
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
VICTIM WITNESS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgcted Amounts : Variances
‘Positive
Original Pinal Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Fines and Fotfeitures 3 - $ - $ 251,370 $ 251,370
Invesiment lncome - - - -
Total Revennes - - 251,370 251,370
Expenditurcs
Judicial
District Atiorney .
Victim Witness Program - - 93,901 {93,901)
Total Judicial - - 93,901 {93,901)
Total expenditures - - 93,901 (93,901)
Excess of revenuces
over cxpenditures $ - $ - 157,469 S 157,469
Fund bafance, beginning of year -
Fund balance, end of year $ 157,469
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
E-H1 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended Junec 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Oripinal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Charges for services $ 1,700,000 1,600,000 $ 2033876 $ 433,876
Investment income - - 3,748 3,748
Total Revenues 1,700,000 1,600,000 2,037,624 437,624
Expenditures
Public safety
Emcrgency telephone system
Personncl services 1,478,300 1,478,300 1,370,158 108,142
Other seevices and charges 479,100 479,100 439,695 39,405
Capital Outilay 103,500 103,500 - 103,500
Total expenditures 2,060,900 2,060,900 1,809,853 251,047
Lxcess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures
{under) expenditures and other uses $ (360,900) {460,900} 221,011 3 186,577
Fund balance, beginning of year 905,007
Fund balance, end of year § 1,132,718
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Revenues
Fines and Forfeiturcs

Investment Income

‘Total Revenues
Expenditures
Public Safety
Sheriff
Other Services and Charges
Capital Ouilay
Toial expenditurcs

Exccss (deficiency) of revenues
over {undcr) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of ycar

Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

JAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 95,000 95,000 § 232,873 $ 137,873
- - 1,918 1,918
95,000 95,000 234,791 139,791
- 50,000 15,256 34,744
95,000 45,000 20,377 24,623
95,000 95,000 35,633 59,367
8 - - 199,158 $ 199,158
474,607
$ 673,765
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SUPPLEMENTAL JUVENILE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Fines and Forfcituces $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 52,070 $ 21,070
{nvestment Income - - 400 400
Total Revenuces 30,000 30,000 57,470 27,470
Expenditsres
Public Safcty
Sherff
Drug abuse program 30,000 30,000 19,588 10,412
Total Public Safety 30,000 30,000 19,588 10,412
“T'otal expenditures 30,000 30,000 19,588 10,412
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ - $ - 37,882 $ 37,882
Fund balance, beginning of year 124,977
Fund balance, end of year $ 162,859
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET {GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DRUG USE TREATMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenwes
Charges for Services $ 110,000 $ 120,000 § 55737 § {64,263)
Investment Income - - 298 298
Total Revenues 110,000 120,000 56,035 (63,965)
Expenditures
Public Safety
Sherdff
Drug abuse program 110,000 135,000 20,269 #,
Total Public Safety 110,000 135,000 20,269 4,71
Total expenditures 110,000 135,000 90,269 44,731
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expeaditures $ - $ (15,000} (342349 § (19,239
Fund balance, beginning of year 120,676
Fund balance, end of year $ 86,442
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Revenue
Charges for Services

Investment Tncome

Toral Revenues
Expendituses
Judicial
Clerk's Technology
Total Judicial
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

CLERK'S TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Vatiances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 60,000 $ 50,000 $ 64,557 $ 14,557
- - 967 967
60,000 50,000 65,524 15,524
60,000 50,000 31,428 18,572
60,000 50,000 31,428 18,572
60,000 50,000 31,428 18,572
§ - $ - 34,096 $ 34,096
293,805
$ 327,901
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Paulding County, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
LAW LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Acmial {Nepative)
Revenues
Chacges for Services $ 10,000 $ 10,000 3 56,216 $ 46,216
Total Revenues 10,000 10,000 56,216 46,216
Expenditires
Judicial
Court's - other charges 10,000 10,000 51,844 (41,844)
Total Judicial 10,000 10,000 51,844 {(41,844)
‘T'otal expenditures 10,000 10,000 51,844 (41,844)
Excess of revenucs
over expendituses $ - 3 - 4372 $ 4,372
Fund balance, hepinning of year 99,057
Fund balance, end of year $ 103,429
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SHERIFF COMMISSARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts V:.uianccs
Positive
Original Final Actual . (Negative)
Revenues .
Charges for Services $ - ) - $ 492 866 3 492,866
Total Revenues - - 492 866 492,866
Expenditures
Public Safety
Sheriff
Commissary - - 343,466 (343,466)
Total Public Safety - - 343,466 (343,466)
Total expenditvres - - 343,466 7 {343,466)
Iixcess of revenucs
over cxpenditures $ - ) - 149,400 $ 149,400
Fund balance, beginning of year -
Fund balance, end of year % 149,400
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DRUG CONFISCATION SPECTAL REVENUE FUND

Year cuded June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Ifines and Forfeitures $ - $ - 3 54538 $ 54,538
Total Revenues - - 54,538 . 54,538
Expenditures
Judicial
District Attorney
Victim Witness Progeam - - 9,271 (9.2711)
Total Judicial
Public Safety
Sheriff
Community Service program - - 10,935 (10,935}
Total Public Safety - - 10,935 (10,935
Total expendituscs - - 20,206 (10,935)
Excess of revenucs
over cxpenditures $ - $ - 34,332 $ 43,603
Fund balance, beginning of year -
Fund balance, end of year ) 34,332
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Paulding County, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Ycar ended June 30, 2010
Budgeted Amounts Variances
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenues :
Taxes $ 6,235,600 $ 5,900,000 $ 6183952 $ 283,952
Investment Income - - 6,346 6,346
Total Revenues 6,235,600 5,900,000 6,190,298 290,208
Expenditures
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 2,205,000 2,300,000 2,545,000 (245,000)
Intcrest and fecs 4,030,600 1,840,000 3,860,850 (20,850}
Refunding hond issuance costs - - 138,064 {138,064}
6,235,600 6,140,000 6,543,914 {403,914)
Total expenditures 6,235,600 6,140,000 6,543,914 (403,914)
Excess (deficience) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (240.000) {353,616) {113,616)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in - - 285,000 285,000
Refunding bonds issued - - 5,129,938 " 5,120,938
Payment 1o refunded bond escrow agene - {360,000} {5,276,874) " (4,916,874)
- {360,000) 138,064 498,064
Excess {deficience} of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses $ - $  (600,000) (215,552 § 334,448
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,275,280
Fund balance, end of year g 1,059,728
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Paulding County, Georgia

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2010
Solid DFACS
Waste Building Totals
ASSETS
Current Asscis
Cash ] - 13 112,751 112,751
Accounts ceceivable, net 15,557 - 15,557
‘Total current assets 15,557 ) 112,751 128,308
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Land 612,233 - 612,233
Plant and equipment 2,035,972 3,114,495 5,150,467
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,582,320) (642,362) {2,224,682)
Toral noncurrent assets 1,065,885 2,472,133 3,538,018
Total assefs 1,081,442 2,584,884 3,666,326
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilics
Accounts payable 46,461 - 46,461
Acerued interest - 4,492 4,492
Compensated Absences 13,71 - 13,791
Due to general fund 250,805 4,424 255,229
Current portion of loans payable ‘ - 155,586 155,586
‘Total cursent liabilities 311,057 164,502 475,559
Long-Term Liabilities, nct of current portion ‘
Loans payable - 1,092,854 1,092,854
Post closure care costs 3,215,839 - 3,215,839
Total long-term liabilities 3,215,839 1,092,854 4,308,693
‘Toral liabilities 3,526,896 1,257,356 4,784,252
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,065,885 1,223,693 2,289,578
Unrestricted (3,511,339) 103,835 (3,407,504}
TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 5 (245454  § 1,327,528 {1,117,926)
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Paulding County, Georgia
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Solid DFACS
Waste Building Total

Operating revenues:
Miscellaneous revenues $ 8,740 $ - 8,740
Landfill and recycling fees 753,530 - 753,530
Lease income - 332 876 332 876
Total openmting revenues 762,270 332,876 1,095,146

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wapes 119,623 - 119,623
Fringe benehis 30,699 - 30,699
Opcrating expenses 704,084 1,805 711,889
Depreciztion 63,694 71,862 141,556
Total operating expenses 218,100 85,667 1,003,767
Opcrating income (155,830} 247,209 91,379

Nonoperating revenues {expenses):

Interest income - 184 184
Tnterest cxpense - (64,139) (64,139)
‘T'otal nonoperating revenuc (expenses) - (63,955) (63,955)
Transfer in 250,000 - 250,000
Change in nct assets 24,170 183,254 271,424
Total net asscts-beginning {2,539,624) 1,144,274 (1,395,350}
Total nct assets-ending $ {2,445,454) $ 1,327,528 {(1,117,926)
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Paulding County, Geotgia

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitics:
Cash received from customer
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash payments for employee services
and fringe benefits

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers in

Net cash provided by noncapital
financing ackvities

Cash flows from capital and rclated
finartcing aclivides:
Principal paid on loans
Interest paid

Net cash used in capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investiog aciivities:
Interest ceceived on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating
activites:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to recondle operating income to
net cash provided {used) by operating activities
Deprecialion expense
{Decrease) in accounts receivable
(Decrease) in accounts payable
(Decrease) in compensated absences payable
(Drecrcase) in due to other funds

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics

Por the year ended June 30, 2010

Solid DFACS
Waste Building Total
H 760,638 5 132,876 $ 1,093,514
(859,710) (12,113) (871,82%)
{150,928) - (150,928)
(250,000) 320763 70,763
250,000 - 250,000
250,000 - 250,000
- (148,213) (148,213)
- (64.674) (64,674)
. (212 887) (212 887)
- 184 184
- 84 184
- 108,060 108,060
s - 5 4691 5 4691
$ - $ 112,751 5 112,751
$ (155830  § 247,209 3 91,379
63,604 77,862 141,556
(1,630) - {1,630)
(2.640) - (2,640)
{606) - (696)
{152,988) {4,308) (157,206)
(94,170) 73,554 (20,616)
3 (2500009  § 320,763 $ 70,763
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Fiduciary Funds
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Paulding County, Georgia

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds

For the year ending June 30, 2010

June 30,

June 30,
2009 Additions Deductions Eliminations 2010
Tax Commissioner
ASSETS
Cash : $ 419,189 $ 130,520,834 $ 129,559,715 $ 307,313 1,072,995
Taxes Receivable (Net) 3,793,607 - 385,428 - 3408179
Total Assets § 4,212,796 $ 130,520,834 $ 129,945,143 $ 307,313 4,481,174
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 4,212,796 S 130,520,834 $ 129,945,143 $ 307,313 4,481,174
Total Liabilities ] 4,212,796 $ 130,520,834 S 129,945,143 $ 307,313 4.481,174
Clerk of Superior Coust
ASSETS
Cash 3 2,318,450 $ 4,819,643 $ 5,662,787 g 221,517 1,263,789
Total Assets $ 2,318,450 $ 4,819,643 $ 5,652,787 $ 221,517 1,263,789
LIABILITIES
Due to Others 3 2,318,450 $ 4,819,643 § 5,652,787 3 221517 . 1,263,789
Total Liabilitics $ 2,318,450 3 4,819,643 $ 5,652,787 $ 221,517 1,263,789
Sheriff
ASSETS
Cash $ 169,086 $ 877,650 $ ,002,486 $ 12,399 31,851
Tatal Asseis $ 169,086 $ 877,650 $ 1,002,486 $ 12,399 31,851
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 169,086 $ 877,650 $ 1,002,486 $ 12,399 31,851
Total Liabilitics $ 169,086 $ 877,650 $ 1,002,486 $ 12,399 31,851
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Paulding County, Georgia

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds

For the year ending June 30, 2010

June 30, June 30,
2009 Additions Deductions Eliminations 2010
Probate Judge
ASSETS
Cash $ 145,710 $ 2,128,998 $ 2,007,415 $ 125,691 $ . 141,602
Total Assets $ 145,710 $ 2,128,998 $ 2,007,415 $ 125,691 $ - 141,602
LIABILITIES
Due o Others $ 145,710 $ 2,128,998 3 2,007,415 $ 125,691 $ 141,602
Total Liabilities $ 145,710 $ 2,128,998 $ 2,007,415 $ 125,691 $ 141,602
Court Administration
ASSETS
Cash 3 39,914 § 645,886 $ 642,982 $ 32,065 $ 10,753
Total Assels $ 39,914 3 645,886 $ 642,982 $ - $ 10,753
LIABILITIES
Due te Others $ 39,914 $ 645,886 $ 642,982 $ 32,065 $ 10,753
$ 39,914 $ 645,886 $ 642,982 $ 32,065 $ 10753
Disirict Altorney
ASSETS
Cash $ 147,169 $ - $ 147,169 $ - 3 -
Total Assets $ 147,169 $ - b3 147,169 $ - $ -
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 147,169 $ - b 147,169 $ - $ -
$ 147,169 $ - $ 147,169 $ - $ -
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Paulding County, Georgia

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds

For the year ending June 30, 2010

June 30, June 30,
2009 Additions Deductions Eliminations 2010
Totals
ASSETS
Cash $ 3,239,518 $ 138,993,011 § 139,012,554 $ 698,985 12,520,990
Taxes Receivable (nef) 3,793,607 - 385,428 - 3,408,179
Total Asseis $ 2,033,125 $ 138,993,011 $ 139,397,982 $ 698,985 5,929,169
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ 7.033,125 $ 138,993,011 $ 139,397,982 $ 698,985 5,929,169
Total Liabilities $ 7,033,125 $ 138,993,011 $ 139,397,982 $ 698,985 5,929,169

100




PAULDING COUNTY, GEORGIA
SECTION 5311 - OPERATING ASSISTANCE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues
Federal povernment $ 97,270
Paulding County General Fund 118,884
Total Revenues 216,154
Expenditutes
Administrative
Director salary 17,550
Bookkeeper salary 1,291
Supervisor salary 20,354
Secretary salary 737
Vehicle insurance 4,116
Training 551
Office Supplies 199
Drug and alcohol testing 145
Audit 1,000
Total administrative expenditures 45,943
Operating
Drivers salares 109,971
Dispatcher salanies 10,169
Fuel and oil 36,214
Maintenance and repait 19,527
‘T'otal opetating expenditures 175,881
Total Expenditures 221,824
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures $  (5,670)
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I11. Statistical Section
(Unaudited)




This part of Paulding County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statement, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the
county’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
County’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 104

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information fo help the readers assess the County’s most
significant local revenue source — Its property tax 109

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help readers assess the affordability of the
county’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future. 113

Demographic and Economic Information :
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help readers understand
how the information in the County’s financial report relates to the services the County
provides and the activities take place. 118

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help readers understand how
the information in the County’s financial report relates to the services the County
provides and the activities it performs. 120

Except where noted, the information in these schedules is derived from Paulding
County’s comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. Paulding County
implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting Government-wide
information included information beginning that year.

102




vO1

£E9°L8Y YOS FLY SL8"OSH 050°0lF $  69€6Z¢ $  B69SOL § VOSTIFI §
- (0L€°9) - - $  9¢9I1 § 866 $ Ll S
£E9°L8Y ¥L90SY CLE9SH 0500lF § 10060 §  969F91 $§  L¥SIFL S
0¢T°LT 68507 £40°02 650°62T T66°LT 169°S¢T F66'61
£FTTS GILIS FAZYAY 798°9r £96'97 £71°81 £91°LT
091°80¥ 0LE'ROY 068°¢8€ 6TIYEE & SPOBST §  Z9%°0Z1T §  06EFE §
CLI'OE1 1€6°¢r1 OCLE 906'1€1 §  L6SZT6 0§ Iv8TL  § 180°19 §
955%9 795T 1Zs 10Z°% 9IL9 6 9Z¢
L6V81 0661 1ZL8T 66162 £PL'S 015% OLE T
0TI°I11 S9FIZI PISH1L 905°86 $  8tl'9L 0§ 6899 § (2] 6 2
09%°16€ T TACTS 6I1CIE YP1%8LT 0§ POFOIT  § SS8'16 0§ 9908 §
¥L9°02 £20°81 861 358°07 LTIz 6PLYT g9t'61
obLicE 118°1¢ 12242 £99°L1 0TT'LL ££9°C1 €6L°G1
0v0°L6T $06°98C 9LE69T £29°66T §  806'LL $ CLFPS § coZ'str %
0102 6002 2002 L00Z 9002 £00Z 007
T3 A Tedstd

(spuesnom) w1 passaidxa syunome)

(31yunodse Jo sISEq [ENIDE)

SIE? X [EISI UIAIG JST]
aauodwo)) £q SI9SSY 1IN

e121095) ‘Qunoy) Suipmed

SJUSWSTRISSI IANTe “S1086® 19U
WouwaA08 Areurud feloL

SJUSUWIANRISDY

$1253B 10U Jusunna0d Arewud mo],
pASInsaIuf)
pRIALNSIY
1G9P P2IRIS JO 19U ‘51065 [euded m pAsIAu]
UIUNUIIA0T ATRTIL]

$1985E 19U sanAT0e d£1-ssouisnq [RI0L
PRISLSIIUN
pawlLnsay
1G2p PAIR[ed JO 13T “s1asse [ejides m paissAul
ssmnanoe adA-ssoursng

S1985% 19U SITTANIOE [RIUSWUISA0T TRI0L
PRRIGSIUN)
pRILnsay
1G2p PaIE[al JO 33U “51asse Tenideo ur pagsaau]
SSNIALDE [ZJUSUILIDAOL)



S01

SPLS0E 1T 8 ELTO9S1E $ TIRE65°SE 3 Treesrsy  § Z0T'S06°0T §  60SL6L'Sl § LOL060°8T S
OFS665°6 £SE Y161 6£T 80T YT L60°E6579¢ 66906 get e Ozrswes
A3 B4 £0I°11E LZ1°688 TSSEIL 691°98¢ 9991601 688°79L
LES'PPE 0LT°78¢ LO9°0FE T90°E8T1 PELITI'L 9E9°0LOT L18°5v6
9T6' bbb 609°E1L LOELLET 9F9'EEsT 999°781°¢ S08'EP9'T PSOPIST
L0'690°1 90£170°T LSY190°1 - - - -
01F'208'e 619°T1ET 106°L1£T 050°617E'T 80T°857°T 689°€18°1 S0L°LELT
S11°Z6¥'E 657 10TE £66'6£0°S 900'188'T L56999'T SI6°EES'T 960v18T
SII°L6ET $ PLY ESO'E g 1ET65L°T $ BTY'SHIT $  GISTIET $  66£121°T $  £TI6HTT $
FOLOLE™90]  § [¥'s6T’101 & 90T 0FL'Y6 $ 18FLLEPS §  14L98E°69 $  6%0°TOTSS § 16E€ERRS S
LP3TERET L807115°¢Z (A SOFLP0'81 169'65L°G1 8L9cT6'EL PEEPISTTI
001816 LLEG06'T LLEVLE ¥6501L PSESIS 256 105 ¥EGLED
90861 081051 6£6'781 L5651 116¥51 LOEEST £50°081
6 v9LTT QETHPFOT L01°$97°81 GrELLILT 9Z7£°656°F1 gsE'8SI°E L L£9'966°11
LSTLELTR PZE83LLL £89°0TH 5L I 055 99 0S0°6F9°CS 16£°8LT'1S L50°610°0F
16T 950F - - - - - -
$70°589°¢ 110°516°¢ SLESLO'Y $89°+00°1 SI1S81y 006°01L§ T60°L59
8815£8C PV EET'T 1ZI°1$9°T TLE6LI'T 90EYSTT LEG'966'T Or0'651°T
86TH16°L SEITIST PLE'EES T SI8LSST £50°108°1 +16'208 1EEP1°L
£L0°80%°E 959°61E'E 966°C69°C TIpEg'e TOT'166'T TILOPP'E P69 168°T
050°8 1481 TH0°060°L1 £THTOYLL 056'E61°91 S6TTEEG L8TSTE6 T80'TCL8
8TI0LI'6T FEI°L96'8T %06°€69°8T ¥Z1'109°€T YT8'LTY'ET 601°9€¥°1T S1v'LTT 6L
PFO1ST1°S £81°L8T'¢ POL100°S 1£0°€98° 001°0ZEY 85L°S60" ¥E6°S8E'E
6E5°860FT  § 6E9PELST g £TLSLE 1 $ LLE'GSO T 8 LeS'ErE's $  YOL'T06 $  29YTERL $

0102 6007 2007 LO0T 900Z $00T 0T

Tea j [eosl]

(Suyanodde Jo siseq [BNJIIE)
SAED X [BISLY UIAIG ISE]
SessY JIN Wt s9ZuEq)
e1d1020) “Ayunoy) Sopneg

$aNUSAI wresFeld saniAnoe EuUswwACS @10
SUONNGLOUCY pue SIesd ende)
suonnquiues pue surerd Fugeiady
SAMUALYE DO
wowdojaasp pue Susnoy
SyIoMm a1qng
Kayes drqng
TE1OIROS
USUNLLAOS [EIUD
$201AI25 107 S2BTEYD)
'SIMIATIOR EIUSTIILIACE
smudary werSosJ

asuadye Jusunuaaod Arewud ol
asuadxa sen1anoe 2dA3-ssemsng (oL
[riypue]
asea] ANNTRF $VAA
I2M2S PUR ITEM,
1son1anae adAy-ssauisng
$o5uadxs SHNLATIOE [RIUSWIWISACT [0
uawwaaofsaguy
1a9p L] SUO[ U0 1SAIU]
yusmdoroasp pue Suisnoy
AIEf[am pUR EIH
UOHEDIG] U ATIMD
S0 A1 qnd
Lpayes oyqng
[EIIpnf
JUFUWIZA0S [RISUIL
'SOYIANOE [EILIUILISACE)
sasmadxy



901

0S6°62E°€1  §  €S8TLSTET $  0ELGTRSY $ £o%'6L9'F8 §  -8T0'608TY $ S8%eTLET 0§ B61TOTHT
(66993E°1) (P00sze) 359618711 07S'BOE 6 395°85L°81 S0 0PE Tl $2F°00EL
6¥991L Y1 $ LSS'TTOET $ TLO'9LG PE LN SPEILESY § 09F°08SET $  0Z868CII $ 11L°196°91
SEI'G08'EL §  ST096TOL $  VRLULTEYL 3 009°L01°¢% §  €L1°T0TLS § 86 IYI6F  § 9T9BFISK
(E207TveT) LITShY 1884761 1897061 ST L06 969°0LE $T9RST
191°8F1°9L 806°058°69 £E5'TOP L 616°T0T'ES 20€P6T9S TOL0L8 8P 1007068ty
S65°5SYT (000°005) (000°08) (000705} (000%05) - GG 0%)
- - - 969°9 rirp9s - 1Z6°01€
£5F'E61 9LYTSL 06L165°¢ 3T°060°T LOTH56 691" 18¢ ELYPST
FOSTTL 180°11Z 915°08T YeT'eeo ST FIL LTEP6T LLLLT
FLFGIO REtP6 FOT'SrS LPT'S9L 687°THS 8PTELS L8618
POr'ro9 057079 616°LTS 169581 BELSHY 19%°L0Y Z05°59¢
££9°989°¢ E9T'OPLE £9T'159°¢ FEETLF'E 0IL'TTEE 9€8°701'E ¥E€9°L98T
056°908°€1 FETSFLTL POFPPEEl 91 TS E1 TBLPIOEL LTI0TE 11 €€9°L0£° 11
SILFTSTT L19°EZETT YIERLE'TT 089°TrPE1 6TT19LT1 1LZ91L°01 TOL'3PE6
0TS 859 610°196 $8L°092°1 FEESTL] 068°508°1 965T0F'1 T01°0Z€°1
Z6L°EE8L £51°78¢°8 $9E°03L°L - - - -
1L812T'9 $08°6Z1°T TIEEE0T 9TE LS £31°209°1 LE9°308'1 §Z56'$19°1
6TI'FLIGE & S0T11£%6T S £P0'651°8T g g61°6L6°5T §  1£L°€T0°1T $ o1Leszsl § [LE19T91
(88T9.t'09) § {(TL1%669) §  (S0TOS6T) 8 sorTisel | (sorcesyD) 8 (RIST1ISST) §  (LTY988°0T)
¥TE6S6 (1zroLL) LOB¥TE 6 6ESEOFLE EPLOSYLI 69€°696° 1 L £98°1H0°L
(Z1sier19)  §  (1so'szzor) §  (1og'ony'ss) ¢ (hesres'iry §  (sp8'spi’zed & (z8glosrie) §  (06T'8T6LD)
9l6EE0'9r § 6ET10€ ¥ §  TCO'BETSH §  OPI0S6E0l §  9£9°SEEHS $ 9550696 $  Y9sOPSLE
1L1988L%T 996 0L TT 0ETYYT 6T FOL16H'SS PEY 065 EE LP0£68°ST L61958°61
6ZE1EL'T 8LE1EE 1 LEV'B09'8 LLLSTRTE 8PS 90T EL VELZIS 01 YO8EST S
OLTTIL 6rTESS 8L PO BLI'0FS 9LT'SES 918'509 £1T865
9LE'TEE 667 TEE 667 TEE P9 TTE ¥9TTE TroTTE SY9TTE
96919617 §  OpTE6L0T §  oTp'8se'sl 3 SOLTSYTIT § 996°6zZS61 §  €08°0SI'P1 §  SLEORLTL
010Z 6002 $00T LOOT 900 £00Z 00T
JTI A, [EIS1]
(panaguod)

(Suguncade Jo SISEq [ENIIIE)
SABIX [EISL] WIAIG 35T
SPSEY J9N Ul SIZWEYD)
eIS1005) ‘yunoy) Fuipiney

JUDUIIIA0T Arewd [e10 ],
sanianoe adA-ssouisng
SONIANDE [EIUDURLIDAOL)
51355V JON W1 SaBUEq))

Jusnnuaa0l Arewd oL
sontanoe adA3-ssoursng
SONIATION [EUIUNLIAOT [€10]L
SIISURL]L
STIOQUE[[IBIIAL
SJUDUNSIAUL UO PILLIES 1SIBIU]
¥e] IJSURT A1ES B9y
X2} OSTYIURY AL 919D
xe} 28e12A3q 21100V
xE? umiwazd aowemsuy
xg1, saes uondo [eoo] [Eeds
xe] saTes uondo oo
X1 uIpIod? 3|qLIuEII]
201AISS DI IOF PA1AY] ‘Soxe] Adadolg
20TAIDS 1q2p J0] PaLAd] ‘saxe) Ausdorg
sagsodmd rersusd 1oy patas] ‘soxe Auadolg
SOXE]
SINIATIC [EUIWILLIIACD

ssuadx? 12u Jusunusaod Arewnd [EoL
somanoe 3dA-ssamsng

SHNATIVE [RIUSUNLSAOL
snueasusdxa) 19N

SANUART Wesdord uanmudaod Arguud o],
sonunaal werdold sampanoe od A-ssaumsng [e10L
suonnqLIues pue sweld repde)
[Pt
9529] AN1o8} SOV
I2Mma5 PUR 178
SIUIAIOS 10T SOBIRYD)
sonranoe 2dA-ssouisng
51355V JON
01 SISUEYY) JII() PUE SINTIAIY |RIIAIL)



LOT

101°L¢ LTI'SE §  1568r $  L8¥96 8 06L°6T $  L9.L1 § TS89T §  8KE91 S €LFPT § SOFLI S
- (€1T°L) {LT0°81) - (98+'7) FOE1 0001 26971 9.5t 0197
£vT6 0TEL pLYY LT £38 SHo°e GES 659 9€5 LY
R68°LT 010°5€ ¥8¥°79 £1£°C6 £6E°LT 818°TI LIEST 166°€1 §  19€°01 $TETI
£6361 W691 § TIFIZ § SES€T § QISTT § Sz86L § 8TVLL § pIFFL § LE9TI S TEEOI $
0L%°91 6¥8°S1 660°0T 96¥TT 159°12T 1761 BGL o1 PPSEl TECOL 1286
£TFE SO 0§ EIET § 6£0°T & 198 g  26F $ 699 $  0L8 § TET § 19 §
0102 6002 800T L00T 9007 $00T y00Z £00T T00T 1002
Te3 [eosty

(spuesnoyy w1 possoadxs spunowe)
(3ununo’? e Jo sISeq [ENJDIE PIIJIPO)
sIeax [Bds1] U] IseY
SpUNY |RHUAWNIIA0L) J0 3dURjEg punj
e131030) ‘Auno)) opineg

SPUN} [RIMSUMLIIACS ISUIO0 [[B [RIOL
spung syoaload endesy
spumny snuwasl re1sdg

: u1 papodas ‘paatesaIun)
PRAIRSYY
SPUNJ [RIUAWLIAACT JITIO0 [TV

puny [eIsus? rejo],
paAatesaIun
PRAIRSY

punj [RISUID



801

25uodxe EuRunLRACRUI ur ST sanw 2y & pred sumous: popnsLy
“1Z8'LES 0 FouTRg PuTy BunnnBaq B mum puny SNUIA [EISNIS [FUORIPPE U PIPMIST] 4a

%3E01 %I1E01 %YL %OLE %NEE'T %8s 2481'9 %36'0 %3L'L %99'L SAUMIPUHDED
endesucn Jo dfemend B 5T 29108 103
6055567 (091 ¥0E81) (197TT8T'Lw) SI9H1L 1R IL9LL A oPLLISE 08¢ 138°E {P06°829) TI8T6E T SY0uTTRY pung ut sumys BN
- - - - - - - - [25'es - + 99UBTR pimy Surmuiiog
- - - . - - - - - 0PETTS 3gsues] Ainbg Empreay

659'805° (000'005) SLL'LES'L $98'915°€8 (0o0"0s) - (o00'0s) (000'sD (000°08) 000'05¥'L (sosm) s9aumos
Bupuewy o [@0],
- = - - - B B B - - so5se Ides Jo JES
- - - - - - - - - - s56af [ide)
(FL3°9L7°6) - - - - - (008°620°5) - - - woBE ACIDSS PUcq PIpUTYSI 01 SudWEg
- - - 898'189'¢ . - . - - - PanssL SPUOQ UO WMUALY
- - - 000'$88°6L - - - - - 000°008"L panss] spuoy
BEG'6TT'S - - - - - 008'670°8 - - - pensst spuoq Burpunyay
(000'sES'D) (oo0'09r°L) (oos'zL1'9) (90s'38L'D) (oo5'eL6'e) (008'555") (pos™ss1) (67895 (o00's1ET) (000'5L£°T) MO ISR,
$65°066'7 0000969 SLT'098'L 90§"8ELE 009°6T6'E 005'$56°E 008's¥1 TS OVST 000°$9TT 000'STET Ul sopsuBIL
(ssn) s2amos Fularauy D0

058'9t9'T (091°r08°L1) (9£0°0L6°8F} {osTzo8'1) £9L°09L TIET1EE LLS'E 035'9L9'€ (525'019) (gzr'08e'e) sampuadia (Japum) 3340
SINUDIAAL 30 FEIINT
T8EH50°06 LLUSETLLT SI8'800%8P1 1€0°149'98 Z06'801'8% §78'8£8°LS GER'ILETS ZEB'9ESSY P0'TSL Sy oL1'S$SETY sumIpusde [@o),
96908 T . E - - - uaunueAoipy

PI0'8EL - - 69T°401'L - - s - - - 500 aUBNEL]

058°098°¢ LSETE0"y $6L1181' 959°50t 961 0EY SIT0zS 8L8°TTL 66T'858 OS'TLE OPO'SERT s

000°$75°Z 0O0'0S¥T 000'586°1 000004 EIT'LLOL S1EPLTT EY'TROT 656°696'L 9T8'598"] £08°6151 edwuuy
OMARS 19
£06'051'61 S6v 1oL LY ET'IIP'EL TV PERYT T86'2#5'91 1£$°EE8°E 065799 SIL'E6E'Y 20+'960'3 9L0'0L8% fepno Edey
GYGELO'T B1'OPD'E 8169 E 8’6697 0ZE'SETT rLL'v9E' oV 1P0T L9T'SES'T £50'12E' 089'Z8T°1 waiudopasp pue Buisnoy
TLI'0TRT L1FLES'T T66°E89°E 185'SIE'E 9£1'696'T BULEIHE'E TLEEPS'T $LL'905°T 33374 -4 995H30'T UODE3I531 PUT SN
[74:3:1: 9 6YLSPLY 9EEDTY'T 915'911 L¥$E00'T 01LTL0'L 30E'601'1 £8.°301°1 9TE'ES5 SPLLEG SURJRM PUB LIRH
L90°6LP'Z1 1405 1L £LEVRTTL TLL695TL 1506 Z1'8LE'DL £90'706°L 1LE'TS8'S LSIVISS 018'08¥'s Spom LR
PSEVES LT 00T'085°LT 9E0TOSLL TLEGO T 5691961 75876612 85T'SST81 T86'SSE'9L 6TEETEYL 199°018'T1 Kamg ongngd
IT'sK0's 085 1LI8 TSTOSEY TrS' LISy GSYIET Y 360'66L'E STYSLEE 1£0'I01'E TLUTHET B30°EETT [@3png
PES'LOT'11 9TI180'T] LLS'SRTIT ELSPLL'OT SEETOL'E 67T'€95'S 8LE'6LY'L £PT058°9 PI£1£€9 TESPEL'S WRULDAGS Ay
sampoady
TELTLLTE LI0'TZE'66 GLL8E0'66 184'858+8 SST'SLR"e9 or10sI'19 $8S'PY6'SS TWEITSr $98°SET'SY TH'SLE'BE $aNUSADL @RIOL
SYT S PEOTHY L$976TS L8L0TE 17892 ISLT6T THHL OFZ EL1 10¢°454T STESIE 1 EROIUT[ROB
169t TL8188 ELL'ESTT LYY LTS'SE LLVTEL S96T'¥ os1's - - SUOHBUOP PUR SUOTINQLING)
15451 L9'18L 68L'165'C 789'950T WThe6 694°18€ ELFHST I85°TSE - - STUIUED WBUSIAUT
900°LLT'T $L9'048"1 SOESZH1 104626 $60°1£6 TI6°LEO'T SLL'PYS LT8'689 160°19% 106'¥57 SHMIpO] pUE ULy
968 EH6'L TLT'LOS'L 9ELTELL PLTTE'L 8TE'0ER"L 9THCEN'L 3£9'184'9 L5t58°s S00'$¥T'S eI’y Paoe 20 Tey)
9L'9SE'L SEFPeETLL 360°6£5'T1 $L8'E05°01 S0TTOST 836'159°1 162761 S0P'86L 01£°070'1 90T'EFY [@usunusAof@Iuy
G61VLE 999'81H £r0°LZ8 $60'F3S°1 LOB'OLLL THSI9' S00'$5L' SESSLY'T 75151 196°LLF'T siuuad pum sl
9E'L0SEL SLTGTHES 8LE6ET' 1L HHTONTY 90817955 SLT'H08'8Y TEIRIEY 91T'8E8'6¢ 122075 TLPHRG'6T s¥BL
R NO2AD Y

010T 00T 3007 £007 900T S00T 07 £002T 002 1002

(ZunnnosdE Jo f15Eq ELIDdE pAYpomw)
MDA [ 0], IR
FPURJ [REIDWIDAGS) J¢ SOURTey puny m »dugy)
wda035) “Guno) 3mpnog



Digest

Year
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

Real
Property
1,281,594
1,367,336
1,902,720
2,179,273
2,192,982
2,548,274
3,087,834
3,451,495
3,622,563
3,334,739

Paulding County, Georgia
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(in thousands)

Privately
Owned Personal
Public and
Utilities Business
42,501 262,286
44,395 357,251
. 43,840 302,562
50,409 306,226
53,121 600,393
55,928 654,582
63,713 724,521
69,459 825,885
78,043 886,331
81,707 906,124

Source: Paulding County Tax Assessors

Total
Assessed
Yalue
1,585,381
1,768,982
2,249,122
2,535,908
2,846,496
3,258,784
3,876,067
4,346,839
4,586,937
4,322,570

Total
Direct
Tax

Rate
7.40
7.35
7.10
7.10
7.10
7.00
7.00
9.00
9.00
10.25

Estimated
Actual
Taxable
Yalue
3,963,453
4,422,455
5,622,805
6,339,770
7,116,240
8,146,960
9,690,168
10,867,098
11,467,343
10,806,425

Note: Property in the county is reassessed annually. The County assesses property at approximately 40 percent
of actual value.

A regular $2,000 Homestead Exemption is allowed on all owner-occupicd homes except for purposes of
bond tax levies. A special $4,000 Homestead Exemption (from all State and County ad valorem taxes) is
allowed on owner-occupied residences of persons who meet age and income requirements. A special
$10,000 Homestead Exemption is allowed on owner-occupied residences of persons who meet age and
income requirements, This exemption applies to all Paulding County school ad valorem taxes except (o
pay interest on and retire bond indebledness. Other special exemptions apply as to school ad valorem
taxes based on age and income levels which entitle the taxpayer to credits of 50% to 100% of the tax due.
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Fiscal
Year
Ending
June 30
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

Tn 2006 the percent of levy collected is more than 100% because of the collection of
taxes that were not on the digest.

Total
Tax Levy
9,956,939
11,096,179
13,720,440
15,535,300
17,430,040
19,306,000
24,891,000
36,780,000
38,747,703
37,490,235

Paulding County, Georgia
Properiy Tax Levies and Collectious

Current
Tax

Collection

9,825,877
10,571,129
13,686,074
15,522,199
17,040,577
19,505,130
24,205,505
34,836,405
36,369,822
35,775,796

Source: Paulding County Tax Commissioner

Last Ten Years

Percent
of Levy
Collected

98.68%
95.27%
99.75%
99.92%
97.77%
101.03%
91.25%
94.72%
93.86%
95.43%

112

Collections in
Subsequent
Years

128,837
519,077
26,876
13,101
389,463
725,158
649,495
926,346
796,316

Total
Tax
Collections

9,954,714
11,090,206
13,712,950
15,535,300
17,430,040
20,230,288
24,855,000
35,762,751
37,166,138
35,775,796

Total
Collections
as Percent
of Current
Levy
99.98%
99.95%
99.95%
100.00%
100.00%
104.79%
99.86%
97.23%
95.92%
95.43%
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Paulding County, Georgia

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Governmental Unit

Direct:
General Obligation Bonds
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds
Intergovernmental Contract
GEFA Loans

Total Direct

Overlapping:

Paulding County School District:

General Obligation Bonds
Capital Leases

City of Dallas
GEFA Loans

Total Overlapping:

Total Direct and Overlapping

As of June 30, 2010

* Estimated percentage applicable is calculated based on assessed property value.
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Estimated
Estimated* Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Qutstanding Applicable Debt

81,780,000 100% 84,540,000
48,455,000 100% 48,455,000
8,475,000 100% 8,475,000
784,724 100% 784,724
139,494,724 142,254,724
158,750,000 90% 142,875,000
1,480,452 90% 1,332,407
4,625,761 6% 271,546
164,856,213 144,484,953
304,350,937 286,739,677
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Paulding County, Georgia
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal
Income Per
Fiscal (amounts expressed Capita Unemployment
Year Population (1) in thousands) Income (2) Rate (3)
2001 88,798 2,132,040 24,010 2.5%
2002 94,184 2,213,512 23,502 3.6%
2003 100,071 2,351,869 23,502 4.1%
2004 106,075 2,459,985 23,191 3.5%
2005 113,807 2,639,298 23,191 3.6%
2006 120,841 2,844,114 23,536 4.0%
2007 125,351 2,870,413 22,899 4.0%
2008 127,906 2,877,118 22,494 6.3%
2009 133,135 3,932,675 29,539 10.7%
2010 136,655 4,428,032 32,403 10.8%

(1) Source: U. S. Census Bureau estimate
(2) Source: Bureau of Economic Accounis

(3) Source: Georgia Department of Labor
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Paudling County, Georgia
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2010 2001
Percentage Percentage
of Paulding of Paulding
County County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Paulding County Board of Education 3808 1 5.72% 1300 1 3.74%
Pautding County Government 777 2 1.17% 300 4 0.86%
Wal-mart Associates Inc. 715 3 1.07% 500 2 1.44%
WellStar Health System Inc 469 5 0.70% 350 3 1.01%
Home Depot 150 9 0.23% 130 6 0.37%
Metromont Prestress Company 162 7 0.24%
Target Corporation 160 8 0.24%
Jim-N-Nicks 78 i0 0.12%
Shaw Industries 219 5 0.63%
Kroger 671 4 1.01%
BellSouth Telecommunications 115 7 0.33%
Aiken Grading 90 H 0.26%
Publix Super Markeis 175 6 0.26% 88 9 0.25%
Winn Dixie 75 10 0.22%

Source: Georgia Department of Labor
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